Flournoy Union
Elementary School District

PO Box 2260; 15850 Paskenta Rd. Flournoy, CA 96029 www.flournoyschool.org 530-833-5331; 530-833-5332 fax

PUBLIC HEARING BOARD MEETING AGENDA
Tuesday, November 13, 2018

MISSION STATEMENT: The Mission of Flournoy Elementary School is to provide academic excellence,
responsible citizens, and a lifelong desire for learning in a safe environment.

DATE: Tuesday, November 13, 2018 at 6:15 p.m.

TYPE: Regular Board Meeting

LOCATION: Flournoy Elementary School; 15850 Paskenta Rd, Flournoy, CA 96029
POSTED: 11/09/2018 Flournoy School, Flournoy Store and Paskenta Store

1. PUBLIC MEETING CALL TO ORDER BY PRESIDING OFFICER , at p.m.
Roll call
Lindsey Belter
Cathy Bjornestad-Tobin
Mark Calfee
Andrew Meredith
Sara Valoroso

PUBLIC COMMENT PERTAINING TO AGENDA
Comments on Closed Session Agenda ltems, (below). Any person wishing to speak to any item on the
Closed Session Agenda will be granted three minutes to make a presentation.
Comments from the Floor: At this time, any person wishing to speak to any item not on the Agenda
will be granted three minutes to make a presentation. No action may be taken at this meeting on
items addressed during these comments.

Comments on Agenda ltems: At this time, any person wishing to speak to any item on the Agenda will
be granted three minutes to make a presentation.

2. CLOSED SESSION None
v i /
Motion/Second Aye/Noes /Abstain
3. PUBLIC SESSION - REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ITEMS
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Recognize staff present: Lane Bates, Superintendent _

Rachel Davis, Teacher

Melinda Flournoy, Business Manager
Amanda Taylor, Teacher

Cody Weston, Custodian

Mei Vance, Instructional Aide

Erin Murphy, Instructional Aide



10.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA / / /.
Motion/Second  Ayes/Noes _/fAbstain
APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE MEETING OF: Tuesday, October 9, 2018
/ / /

Motion/Second  Ayes/Noes _/Abstain

COMMENTS
A. From members of the Board of Education
B. From the Superintendent and Business Manager
C. From the Staff/Teachers

GENERAL FUNCTION CONSENT ITEMS (Attachments)
A. Bills and warrants for October
B. MOUs/Agreements:  None /. /. /.

Motion/Second Aye/Noes _/Abstain

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS ~ (Attachments)
A. Discussion regarding LCFF/LCAP Dashboard Review /. /. /
Motion/Second  Aye/Noes /Abstain
B. Consider approval of the following Updated Board Policies:
e BP 0410 Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities
BP/AR 3514 Environmental Safety
BP 3514.1 Hazardous Substances
BP/AR 3516 Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan
BP/AR 4158/4258/4358 Employee Security
BP/AR 4161.9/4261.9/4361.9 Catastrophic Leave Program
BP/AR 5111 Admission
BP/AR 5111.1 District Residency
BP/AR 5125 Student Records
AR/E 5125.1 Release of Directory Information
BP 5131.2 Bullying
BP/AR 5145.13 Response to Immigration Enforcement
BP/AR 5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment
BP 5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior
BP 6161.3 Toxic Art Supplies (Deleted) /. / /
Motion/Second  Aye/Noes /fAbstain

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Congratulations to Natalie Cisneros our Elks Lodge Student of the Month for November.:)
Tuesday, November 13 - Boys/Girls Basketball game @ Gerber Elementary School
Thursday, November 15 - Boy/Girls Basketball game @ Sacred Heart Elementary School
Friday, November 16 - Agribee Spelling Bee

November 19-23 No School - Thanksgiving Break

Thursday, November 29 - Boys/Girls Basketball game @ Reeds Creek Elementary School
Wednesday, December 5 - Boys/Girls Basketball game @ Richfield Elementary School

OmMmoO® >



11. DISCUSSION ON NEXT BOARD MEETING
A. Next meeting date: Tuesday, December 11, 2018 at 6:15 p.m.
B. Possible items for action/discussion
e |[nstall New Officers
e Updated Policies
e 1st Interim Budget Report
e Annual Developer Fee Report

12. FURTHER COMMENTS
A. From members of the Board of Education
B. From the Superintendent Adjournment at



b

PO Box 2260; 15850 Paskenta Rd.

. Flournoy, CA 96029

J Flournoy Union www.flournoyschool.org
~  Elementary School District 530-833-5331; 530-833-5332 fax

FLOURNOY™

\ _ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE
FLOURNOY UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MISSION STATEMENT: The Mission of Flournoy Elementary School is to provide academic excellence, responsible
citizens, and a lifelong desire for learning in a safe environment.

DATE OF MEETING: Tuesday, October 9, 2018 at 6:15 p.m.

TYPE OF MEETING: Regular Board Meeting

PLACE: Flournoy Elementary School; 15850 Paskenta Road, Flournoy, CA 96029
MEMBERS PRESENT: Sara Valoroso, Lindsey Belter, Cathy Bjornestad-Tobin, Mark Calfee
MEMBERS ABSENT: Andrew Meredith

RECOGNIZED STAFF: Lane Bates, Amanda Taylor, Melinda Flournoy

1. Callthe Meeting to Order and Roll Call

Board President Sara Valoroso called meeting to order at 6:23 p.m.
2. Closed Session None

3.  Public comment pertaining to agenda None

4. Pledge of Allegiance
Board President Sara Valoroso led the Pledge of Allegiance.
5. Adoption of Agenda
On motion by Cathy Bjornestad-Tobin and second by Lindsey Belter, the agenda was approved. Aye: 4

6. Approval of Minutes from the meeting of:

On motion by Lindsey Belter and second by Mark Calfee, the agenda was approved. Aye: 4
7. Comments:

A.  From members of the Board of Education: None

B. From the Superintendent None
C. From the Staff/Teachers: None
8. Donations and Gifts to the District: None

9. General Function Consent ltems:

On Motion by Lindsey Belter and second by Cathy Bjornestad-Tobin, the monthly bills, warrants and Agreements and MOU'’s
were approved. Aye:4




10. Discussion/Action Items — New Business

A.  Approval of the Quarterly Report Williams Complaints for the period ending October 2018
On motion by Cathy Bjornestad-Tobin and second by Mark Calfee the Quarterly Williams Report was approved. Aye: 4
B. Consider Approval of the FUESD Comprehensive School Safety Plan for 2018.

On motion by Lindsey Belter and second by Cathy Bjornestad-Tobin the FUESD Comprehensive School Safety Plan for
2018 was approved. Aye: 4

C. Consider approval of the following Updated Board Policies: Aye: 4
e  BP/AR 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures
e AR 3230 Federal Grant Funds
¢ AR 3514.2 Integrated Pest Management
e BP/AR 3551 Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund
e  BP/AR 3553 Free and Reduced Price Meals
e BP4111/4211/4311 Recruitment and Selection
BP/AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11
AR 4161.1/4361.1 Personal lliness/Injury Leave
AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 Family Care and Medical Leave
AR 4261.1 Personal lliness/Injury Leave
BP/AR 5022 Student and Family Privacy Rights
BP/E 5145.6 Parental Notifications
BP 6162.5 Student Assessment
e  BB/E 9270 Conflict of Interest

e @ @ o o o

On motion by Lindsey Belter and second by Mark Calfee the Board approved the Updated Board Policies. Aye: 4

11. Announcements
e Congratulations to Charleigh Merkley our Elks Lodge Student of the Month for October.:)
e  Friday, October 12, 2018 - Co-Ed Volleyball Game at Bend Elementary School
®  Tuesday, October 16, 2018 - 3-5 Grade Field Trip to TDFG for Farm Day
e  Thursday, October 18, 2018 - Girls Volleyball Game at Reeds Creek Elementary School
e  Friday, October 19, 2018 - No School (Teacher Work Day)
e  October 22-26, 2018 - Red Ribbon Spirit Week
° October 22-24, 2018 - Parent Teacher Conferences
e  Thursday, November 1, 2018 - 7-8 Field Trip to TDFG for College and Career Day

12. Adjournment

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at _6:37 p.m._on motion by Sara Valoroso

Flournoy Union Elementary School District
Meeting of the Board of Education




Wv¥Z:0l 8L0C
8 AON (80BAONYNOTIN) AONYNOT YANITIN 40} pajessuss)

1214381@ [00Yds Aouanold - 806

| Jo | abedq ‘paacudde aq syosy) Buipsosid
34V S 3 | 3y} Jey) papuawwIWIodal s1}| "S83)snl] JO pieag sy} JO UOHEBZUOUINE pue AJljod S,)01)SIQ SU} Ulim 80UBpICIJE Ul panss| uaaq aney syoayd Buipssaid sy
- ProSLLL (unowy ¥29y3) 19N
8 00’ Aungert e pledun ssa
P ocLLL Ll 3084 JO JaquINN [Ej0 L
00°86¥'¢ 3 NEHL-SSYd/INVHHVYM 9.
€5 09¢ € AT 33dS VI3 1L34VD el
26°118°L L IVHINTD L0
junowy pasuadxg unog }osyod uondiiosaqg pung
deaay puny
P OELLL Ll S}298YD jo Jaqunp |ejo
00°G.L Aeids 1sad |esauag 5055-1L0 |0JU0D 1s9d SPOCAN  8LOZ/0L/OL crieELLOY
¥4°06¢ deog Q0gH-10 Alddng Asenueg 31Xvm 81L02/0L/01 LPLELLOY
GZT EBE'E ¥9'66 sway| a|diNN 00EF-EL
8.°6¢ sway| a|dnNiy 009S- L0
£8'€9l'E sway| a|dNN 00EF-LO jyueg SN 8L0C/0L/OL ovLeLLOY
£5'Cey wn[naIng yiew dwnr gogy- Lo $s8ld 0JU0IO] JO AysIBAlUN  8LOZ/0L/0L 6ELELLOY
00°L¥ Bunuudiabulg uoysep "0 008S-10 uoheonpd jo ydeg 00 eweyal 8L0Z/0L/0) 8ELELLOY
00°'86%'¢ 00°'LS swinjuwald aouelnsu| £6G6-92
00'651 SWINIWAld 90UBINSU| 2566-9/
00°Z¥8 swnjwald aouelnsu| £266-9/
00°9rt'e swinjwiald aduelnsu| €1G6-92 OISOl 8L02/0L/0L LELELLOY
0L'€EEB’L li'g 2110813 £055-10 0D 2093 @ se9 JUloed  8L0Z/0L/0) 9elLelloYy
Ge'1G68 wnnoLang uieiN 00ey-10 EQp 2AjBIOQE(I0D H30 Zl-M @Yl 8102/0L/0L GELELLOY
8¢°90¢ $3YaunT |0oYyds JOI NN 00LYP-EL "poid Aureq Bunnauisiq "WT 81L02/0L/0) PELELLOY
LL°261 Ig ebegies 009S-1L0 SISEM UsaID  8L0Z/0L/0L EELELLOY
00°66 Buipeay el J8lBM Z0GS-10 ueb|ind  8L0z/0L/0} CELELLOY
¥8'LLe asea 1a1dod 009510 "ou| swis)sAg ssauisng [21s80D  8L0Z/0L/0L Leleslor
00°0S Bunojuoy uonels [enusd Alyiuow L055-10 Auedwoy Asyes eluioyied  8LOZ/OL/0L OELELLOY
09'¥S SelIpowio] pood Q0LF-EL ssald epD p3 4o 1deq D 8L0Z/0L/0L 6CLELLOY
00591 Buuoyuopy Jerep BuuLq Z0ss-10 ‘oul ‘AlojeloqeT olseg  8L0Z/0L/0L 82LeLL0Y
8¢'8. llg auoyd L06S-10 euleD/1g1Y 8LOZ/OL/0L L2LELLOY
0,56 181504 @oueldwo) ped 3 v 00E-LO Jejuep aoue|dwo) 191s0d  §L0Z/0L/OL 9clLeLLOY
junowy junowy JuswIwo) 1rao-a4 ajeq JaquinN
¥oayo pasuadxg JO 1apiQ 3y} o3 Aed ¥2ayo ¥29y9n

8102/1€/0} ybnoauy g10z/1L0/0L P3eq S¥23UD

Hoday pieog

pzlAedbay



a8

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0410(a)
NONDISCRIMINATION IN DISTRICT PROGRAMS AND ACTIVITIES

The Governing Board is committed to providing equal opportunity for all individuals in district
programs and activities. District programs, activities, and practices shall be free from unlawful
discrimination, including discrimination against an individual or group based on race, color,
ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnic group identification, ethnicity,
age, religion, marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual
orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information; a perception of
one or more of such characteristics; or association with a person or group with one or more of
these actual or perceived characteristics.

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)

(cf- 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)

(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation)

(cf 4033 - Lactation Accommodation)

(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave)
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

(¢f. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)

(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)

(cf- 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)
(cf- 6178 - Career Technical Education)

(cf: 6200 - Adult Education)

All individuals shall be treated equitably in the receipt of district and school services. Personally
identifiable information collected in the implementation of any district program, including, but
not limited to, student and family information for the free and reduced-price lunch program,
transportation, or any other educational program, shall be used only for the purposes of the
program, except when the Superintendent or designee authorizes its use for another purpose in
accordance with law. Resources and data collected by the district shall not be used, directly or by
others, to compile a list, registry, or database of individuals based on race, gender, sexual
orientation, religion, ethnicity, national origin, or immigration status or any other category
identified above.

(cf. 3540 - Transportation)
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals)
(cf. 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement)

District programs and activities shall be free of any racially derogatory or discriminatory school
or athletic team names, mascots, or nicknames.

The Superintendent or designee shall annually review district programs and activities to ensure
the removal of any derogatory or discriminatory name, image, practice, or other



BP 0410(b)
NONDISCRIMINATION IN DISTRICT PROGRAMS AND ACTIVITIES (continued)

barrier that may unlawfully prevent an individual or group in any of the protected categories
stated above from accessing district programs and activities. He/she shall take prompt,
reasonable actions to remove any identified barrier. The Superintendent or designee shall report
his/her findings and recommendations to the Board after each review.

(cf. 1330 - Use of Facilities)

All allegations of unlawful discrimination in district programs and activities shall be investigated
and resolved in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint
Procedures.

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

Pursuant to 34 CFR 104.8 and 34 CFR 106.9, the Superintendent or designee shall notify
students, parents/guardians, employees, employee organizations, applicants for admission and
employment, and sources of referral for applicants about the district's policy on
nondiscrimination and related complaint procedures. Such notification shall be included in the
annual parental notification distributed pursuant to Education Code 48980 and, as applicable, in
announcements, bulletins, catalogs, handbooks, application forms, or other materials distributed
by the district. The notification shall also be posted on the district's web site and social media
and 1n district schools and offices, including staff lounges, student government meeting rooms,
and other prominent locations as appropriate.

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)

(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)

(cf 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

In addition, the annual parental notification shall inform parents/guardians of their children's
right to a free public education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs, including
information on educational rights issued by the California Attorney General. Alternatively, such
information may be provided through any other cost-effective means determined by the
Superintendent or designee. (Education Code 234.7)

The district's nondiscrimination policy and related informational materials shall be published in a
format that parents/guardians can understand. In addition, when 15 percent or more of a school's
students speak a single primary language other than English, those materials shall be translated
into that other language.

Access for Individuals with Disabilities

District programs and facilities, viewed in their entirety, shall be in compliance with the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and any implementing standards and/or regulations.



BP 0410(c)
NONDISCRIMINATION IN DISTRICT PROGRAMS AND ACTIVITIES (continued)

When structural changes to existing district facilities are needed to provide individuals with
disabilities access to programs, services, activities, or facilities, the Superintendent or designee
shall develop a transition plan that sets forth the steps for completing the changes.

(cf. 6163.2 - Animals at School)
(cf- 7110 - Facilities Master Plan)
(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district provides appropriate auxiliary aids
and services when necessary to afford individuals with disabilities equal opportunity to
participate in or enjoy the benefits of a service, program, or activity. These aids and services may
include, but are not limited to, qualified interpreters or readers, assistive listening devices,
assistive technologies or other modifications to increase accessibility to district and school web
sites, notetakers, written materials, taped text, and Braille or large-print materials. Individuals
with disabilities shall notify the Superintendent or principal if they have a disability that requires
special assistance or services. Reasonable notification should be given prior to a school-
sponsored function, program, or meeting.

(cf- 6020 - Parent Involvement)
(cf- 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf- 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

The individual identified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures as the employee
responsible for coordinating the district's response to complaints and for complying with state
federal civil rights laws is hereby designated as the district's ADA coordinator. He/she shall
receive and address requests for accommodation submitted by individuals with disabilities, and
shall investigate and resolve complaints regarding their access to district programs, services,
activities, or facilities.

(title or position)

(address)

(telephone number)

(email)

Legal Reference: (see next page)
BP 0410(d)



NONDISCRIMINATION IN DISTRICT PROGRAMS AND ACTIVITIES (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination
48980 Parental notifications
48985 Notices to parents in language other than English
51007 Legislative intent: state policy
GOVERNMENT CODE
8310.3 California Religious Freedom Act
11000 Definitions
11135 Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state
12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act
54953.2 Brown Act compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act
PENAL CODE
422.55 Definition of hate crime
422.6 Interference with constitutional vight or privilege
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures
4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act
1681-1688 Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX
2301-2415 Carl D. Perkins Vocational and Applied Technology Act
6311 State plans
6312 Local education agency plans
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29
794 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
20004-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964
2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended
2000h-2000h-6 Title IX
12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28
35.101-35.190 Americans with Disabilities Act
36.303 Auxiliary aids and services
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
100.1-100.13 Nondiscrimination in federal programs, effectuating Title VI
104.1-104.39 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
106.1-106.61 Discrimination on the basis of sex, effectuating Title IX, especially:
106.9 Dissemination of policy

Management Resources: (see next page)



BP 0410(c)

NONDISCRIMINATION IN DISTRICT PROGRAMS AND ACTIVITIES (continued)

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Updated Legal Guidance: Protecting Transgender _and Gender Nonconforming Students Against Sex

Discrimination, July 2016

CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS

Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All: Guidance and Model Policies to Assist
California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING PUBLICATIONS
California Law Prohibits Workplace Discrimination and Harassment

US. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Studenis, May 2016
Dear Colleague Letter: Title IX Coordinators, April 2015

Dear Colleague Letter, May 26, 2011

Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullving, October 2010

Notice of Non-Discrimination, Fact Sheet, August 2010

Dear Colleague Letter: Electronic Book Readers, June 29, 2010

Nondiscrimination in Employment Practices in Education, August 1991

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS

2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design, September 2010

Accessibility of State and Local Government Websites to People with Disabilities, June 2003
WORLD WIDE WEB CONSORTIUM PUBLICATIONS

Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, December 2008

WEB SITES

CSBA: hitp://www.csba.org

California Office of the Attorney General: hitp.//oag.ca.gov

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

California Department of Fair Employment and Housing: htp.//www.dfeh.ca.gov

Safe Schools Coalition: hitp://mww.casafeschools.org

Facific ADA Center: htip://www.adapacific.org

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://iwww.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr
U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Americans with Disabilities Act: http://www.ada.gov
U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission: hitp.//www.eeoc.gov

World Wide Web Consortium, Web Accessibility Initiative: http:/fwww.w3.org/wei

Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
adopted: May 2018



Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3514(a)
ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY

The Governing Board recognizes its obligation to provide a safe and healthy environment at
school facilities for students, staff, and community members. The Superintendent or designee
shall regularly assess school facilities to identify environmental health risks and shall develop
strategies to prevent and/or mitigate environmental hazards. He/she shall consider the proven
effectiveness of various options, anticipated short-term and long-term costs and/or savings to the
district, and the potential impact on staff and students, including the impact on student
achievement and attendance.

(cf- 0200 - Goals for the School District)

(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans)

(cf 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)
(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)
(cf. 3516.3 - Earthquake Emergency Procedure System)
(cf: 3517 - Facilities Inspection)

(cf- 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety)

(cf. 5142 - Safety)

(¢f 7111 - Evaluating Fxisting Buildings)

Such strategies shall focus on maximizing healthy indoor air quality; monitoring the quality of
outdoor air and adjusting outdoor activities as necessary; reducing exposure to vehicle emissions;
minimizing exposure to lead and mercury; reducing the risk of unsafe drinking water; inspecting
and properly abating asbestos; appropriately storing, using, and disposing of potentially
hazardous substances; using effective least toxic pest management practices; reducing the risk of
foodborne illness; and addressing any other environmental hazards identified during facilities
inspections.

(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations)

(¢f. 3513.3 - Tobacco-Free Schools)

(cf: 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances)

(cf 3514.2 - Integrated Pest Management)

(cf 3516.5 - Emergency Schedules)

(cf. 3540 - Transportation)

(cf. 3341.1 - Transportation for School-Related Trips)
(cf. 3542 - School Bus Drivers)

(cf: 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program)
(cf 5141.23 - Asthma Management)

(¢f. 5141.7 - Sun Safety)

(¢f 5142.2 - Safe Routes to School Program)

(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity)

(cf. 6163.2 - Animals at School)

(cf. 7150 - Site Selection and Development)

In developing strategies to promote healthy school environments, the Superintendent or designee
may consult and collaborate with local environmental protection agencics, health agencies, water
boards, and other community organizations.

(cf.- 1020 - Youth Services)



BP 3514(b)

ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY (continued)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide the district's maintenance and facilities staff, bus
drivers, food services staff, teachers, and other staff as appropriate with professional
development regarding their responsibilities in implementing strategies to improve and maintain
environmentally safe and healthy schools.

(cf- 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf- 4331 - Staff Development)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify the Board, staff, parents/guardians, students, and/or
governmental agencies, as appropriate, if an environmental hazard is discovered at a school site.
The notification shall provide information about the district's actions to remedy the hazard and
may recommend health screening of staff and students.

(cf- 5141.6 - School Health Services)

Legal Reference: (see next page)



BP 3514(c)
ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
17002 Definition of "good repair"”
17070.75 Facilities inspection
17582 Deferred maintenance fund
17590 Asbestos abatement fund
17608-17614 Healthy Schools Act of 2000, least toxic pest management practices
32080-32081 Carbon monoxide devices
32240-32245 Lead-Safe Schools Protection Act
48980.3 Notification of pesticides
49410-49410.7 Asbestos materials containment or removal
FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL CODE
11401-12408 Pest control operations and agricultural chemicals
13180-13188 Healthy Schools Act of 2000, least toxic pest management practices
GOVERNMENT CODE
3343.2 Scope of representation, right to negotiate safety conditions
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
105400-105430 Indoor environmental quality
113700-114437 California Retail Food Code, sanitation and safety requirements
116277 Lead testing of potable water at schools and requirements to remedy
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
14010 Standards for school site selection
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8
337-339 Hazardous substances list
340-340.2 Occupational safety and health, rights of employees
1528-1537 Construction safety orders; exposure to hazards
© 5139-5223 Control of hazardous substances
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 13
2025 Retrofitting of diesel school buses
2480 Vehicle idling
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17
35001-36100 Lead abatement services
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 22
64670-64679 Lead and copper in drinking water
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 24
915.1-915.7 California Building Standards Code; carbon monoxide devices
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 7
136-136y Use of pesticides
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 15
2601-2629 Control of toxic substances
2641-2656  Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
1758 Food safety and inspections
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS. TITLE 40
141.1-141.723 Drinking water standards
745.61-745.339 Lead-based paint standards
763.80-763.99 Asbestos-containing materials in schools
763.120-763.123 Asbestos worker protections

Management Resources: (see next page)



BP 3514(d)

ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY (continued)

Management Resources:

Policy

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Indoor Air Qualitv: Governing Board Actions for Creating Healthy School Environments, Policy Brief,
July 2008

Asthma Management in the Schools, Policy Brief, March 2008

Food Safety Requirements, Fact Sheet, October 2007

Sun Safety in Schools, Policy Brief, July 2006

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

School Site Selection and Approval Guide, 2000

Indoor Air Quality, A Guide for Educators, 1995

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH SERVICES PUBLICATIONS

Report to _the Legislature: Lead Hazards in California’s Public Elementary Schools and Child Care

Facilities, April 1998
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY: AIR  RESOURCES BOARD

PUBLICATIONS

Facts about Truck and Bus Regulation School Bus Provisions, rev. March 22, 2011

CALIFORNIA STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD PUBLICATIONS

Frequently Asked Questions about Lead Testing of Drinking Water in California Schools; Updated for

Assembly Bill 746/Health and Safety Code 116277, December 15, 2017

DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT PUBLICATIONS

K-12 Occupancy Classification and Load Factors, IR A-26, rev. April 18, 2012

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY PUBLICATIONS

A Citizen's Guide to Radon: The Guide to Protecting Yourself and Your Family from Radon, 2016
Healthy School Environments Assessment Tool, rev. 2015

Indoor Air OQuality Tools for Schools, rev. 2009

Mold Remediation in Schools and Commercial Buildings, September 2008

The ABCs of Asbestos in Schools, rev. August 2003

How to Manage Asbestos in School Buildings: AHERA Designated Person's Self~-Study Guide, 1996
WEB SITES

CSBA: hitp://iwww.csba.org

AirNow: http://www.airnow.gov

American Association of School Administrators: hittp://www.aasa.org

Cualifornia Air Resources Board: http:/iwww.arb.ca.gov

California Building Standards: http://www.bsc.ca.gov/codes.aspx

California Department of Education, Health and Safety: http://www.cde.ca.gov/Is/fa/hs
California Department of Pesticide Regulation: hitp://www.cdpr.ca.gov

California Department of Public Health: http://www.cdph.ca.gov

California State Water Resources Control Board: https:/iwww.waterboards.ca.gov
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: hitp://www.cde.gov

Consumer Product Safety Commission: http://www.cpsc.gov

National Center for Environmental Health: http://www.cde.gov/nceh

Occupational Safety and Health Administration: http://www.osha.gov

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.: http://www.epa.gov

CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE

adopted: May 2018



Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3514(a)
ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY

The Superintendent may designate and train one or more employees to oversee and coordinate
the district's environmental safety program(s). The responsibilities of the coordinator(s) shall
include, but are not limited to, overseeing assessments of district facilities, recommending
strategies for the prevention and mitigation of environmental health risks, ensuring effective
implementation of environmental safety strategies, and reporting to the Superintendent regarding
the district's progress in addressing environmental safety concerns.

(cf- 3510 - Green School Operations)

(cf- 3511 - Energy and Water Management)
(cf. 3517 - Facilities Inspection)

(cf 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety)

(cf. 5142 - Safety)

(cf: 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings)
(cf. 7150 - Site Selection and Development)

Indoor Air Quality

In order to provide proper ventilation, humidity, and temperature in school facilities and to
reduce indoor air contaminants, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the following
strategies are implemented.:

1. Mechanically driven heating, ventilation, and air conditioning systems shall be operated
continuously during working hours except under the circumstances specified in 8 CCR
5142. The systems shall be inspected at least annually and problems corrected within a
reasonable time. Where the air supply is filtered, the filters shall be replaced or cleaned
regularly to prevent significant reductions in airflow. Documentation of inspections, tests
of ventilation rates, and maintenance shall be retained for at least five years. (8 CCR
5142-5143)

(¢f- 3580 - District Records)

Staff shall ensure that airflow is not obstructed by the blocking of ventilators with
posters, furniture, books, or other obstacles.

% School facilities shall be regularly inspected for water damage, spills, leaks in plumbing
and roofs, poor drainage, and improper ventilation so as to preclude the buildup of mold
and mildew. Wet building materials and furnishings shall be dried within 48 hours if
possible to prevent mold growth. When evidence of mold or mildew is found,
maintenance staff shall locate and repair the source of water intrusion and remove or
clean moldy materials.

3. Exterior wall and foundation cracks and openings shall be sealed as soon as possible to
minimize seepage of radon into buildings from surrounding soils.



AR 3514(b)

ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY (continued)

4.

Least toxic pest management practices shall be used to control and manage pests at
school sites. (Education Code 17608-17614; Food and Agriculture Code 13182)

(cf- 3514.2 - Integrated Pest Management)

5.

The Superintendent or designee shall install a carbon monoxide detector or alarm in all
school buildings that contain a fuel-burning appliance, fireplace, or forced-air furnace.
The device or alarm shall be located in close proximity to the appliance in order to
accurately detect and alert school personnel of any leakage of carbon monoxide. (24
CCR 915.1-915.7)

Schedules and practices for routine housekeeping and maintenance shall be designed to
effectively reduce levels of dust, dirt, and debris. Plain water, soap and water, or low-
emission cleaning products shall be used whenever possible. Aerosols, including air
fresheners and other products containing ozone, shall be avoided to the extent possible.

(cf: 5141.23 - Asthma Management)

7.

Painting of school facilities and maintenance or repair activities that require the use of
potentially harmful substances shall be limited to those times when school is not in
session. Following any such activity, the facility shall be properly ventilated with
adequate time allowed prior to reopening for use by any person.

Paints, adhesives, and solvents shall be used and stored in well-ventilated areas. These
items shall be purchased in small quantities to avoid storage exposure.

(cf. 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances)

g,

10.

To the extent possible, printing and duplicating equipment that may generate indoor air
pollutants, such as methyl alcohol or ammonia, shall be placed in locations that are well
ventilated and not frequented by students and staff.

The district's tobacco-free schools policy shall be consistently enforced in order to reduce
the health risks caused by second-hand smoke.

(cf- 3513.3 - Tobacco-Free Schools)

4

Staff and students shall be asked to refrain from bringing common irritants such as furred
or feathered animals, stuffed toys that may collect dust mites, scented candles, incense, or
air fresheners and from using perfume or cologne, scented lotion or hair spray, nail polish
or nail polish remover, or other personal care products that are not fragrance-free in
classrooms or other enclosed areas or buildings.



AR 3514(c)
ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY (continued)

(¢f- 6163.2 - Animals at School)
Outdoor Air Quality

The Superintendent or designee may monitor local health advisories and outdoor air quality
alerts, including forecasts of ozone levels, particle pollution, ultraviolet radiation levels, and/or
temperature and humidity.

Whenever these measures indicate a significant health risk, the Superintendent or designee shall
communicate with each principal so that outdoor activities, especially those requiring prolonged
or heavy exertion, may be avoided, limited in duration, or modified as necessary for all persons
or for persons who may be particularly susceptible to the health risk involved.

(cf- 5141.7 - Sun Safety)

(cf- 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity)

(cf- 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

Vehicle Emissions

In order to reduce public exposure to toxic air contaminants, school bus drivers and other drivers
of commercial motor vehicles shall limit unnecessary idling of vehicles at or near schools in
accordance with 13 CCR 2480. The Superintendent or designee may also request
parents/guardians to turn off their vehicles when they are idling on school grounds and
encourage students to walk and/or bicycle to school.

(cf- 3540 - Transportation)

(cf. 3541.1 - Transportation for School-Related Trips)
(cf- 3542 - School Bus Drivers)

(cf. 5142.2 - Safe Routes to School Program)

Any diesel-fueled, dual-fueled, or alternative diesel-fueled school bus with a gross vehicle
weight rating over 14,000 pounds-shall be equipped with a particulate filter designed to reduce
particulate matter emissions, oxides of nitrogen emissions, and other pollutants. (13 CCR 2025)

Drinking Water
The quality and safety of the district's drinking water sources shall be regularly assessed, and
drinking fountains shall be regularly cleaned and maintained to avoid the presence of dirt, mold,

or other impurities or health concerns.

Whenever any contaminants in the drinking water are determined to be a concern, the
Superintendent or designee shall take reasonable steps to identify the source and mitigate the



AR 3514(d)

ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY (continued)

concern to ensure the availability of safe drinking water. As needed, the Superintendent or
designee shall provide alternative sources of drinking water, such as bottled water, to ensure that
students have access to fresh drinking water at mealtimes and at other times throughout the day.

(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program)

Whenever testing of drinking water finds concentrations of lead that exceed federal and state
standards, the Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians and take immediate
steps to make inoperable any fountains or faucets where excess lead levels may exist. (Health
and Safety Code 116277)

Lead Exposure

In addition to keeping school facilities as dust-free and clean as possible, the following steps
shall be taken to minimize potential exposure to lead in school facilities:

1. Lead-based paint, lead plumbing and solders, or other potential sources of lead
contamination shall not be used in the construction of any new school facility or the
modernization or renovation of any existing school facility. (Education Code 32244)

2, Lead exposure hazards shall be evaluated before any renovation or remodeling is begun,
and children shall not be allowed in or near buildings in which these activities may create
lead dust. Contractors and workers shall comply with state and federal standards related
to the handling and disposal of lead debris and the clean-up and containment of dust
within the construction area.

3 Lead-based painted surfaces that are in good condition shall be kept intact. If lead-based
paint is peeling, flaking, or chalking, contractors or workers shall follow state and federal
standards for safe work practices to minimize contamination when removing the paint.

4, Soil with low lead content may be covered with grass, other plantings, concrete, or
asphalt. For soil with high lead content, removal and abatement are required.

5. Drinking water shall be regularly tested for lead and remediated as provided in the
section "Drinking Water" above.

Any action to abate existing lead hazards, excluding containment or cleaning, shall be taken only
by contractors, inspectors, and workers certified by the California Department of Public Health
in accordance with 17 CCR 35001-35099. (Education Code 32243)



AR 3514(e)

ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY (continued)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify parent/guardians, teachers, and staff members if
significant risk factors for lead exposure are found. (Education Code 32243)

Mercury Exposure

The Superintendent or designee shall identify any products containing mercury that are present
in district facilities and, to the extent possible, shall replace them with mercury-free alternatives.

Staff shall receive information about proper procedures to follow in the event of a mercury spill.
Clean-up instructions, a clearly labeled kit with necessary clean-up supplies, and a list of local
resources shall be readily accessible.

In the event of a spill, staff shall evacuate all students from the immediate area of the spill,
ensure that any clothing or other items with mercury on them remain in the room, open windows
to the outside, and close doors to other parts of the school. Staff who are trained in proper clean-
up procedures may carefully clean a small spill. As needed for larger or difficult-to-clean spills,
the Superintendent or designee shall use an experienced professional referred by the local health
department or environmental agency.

Any products containing mercury shall be properly disposed at an appropriate hazardous waste
collection facility.

Asbestos Management

The Superintendent shall designate an employee who shall ensure that the district's
responsibilities related to asbestos inspection and abatement are implemented in accordance with
federal and state regulations. This employee shall receive adequate training to perform these
duties, including, as necessary, training on the health effects of asbestos; detection,
identification, and assessment of asbestos-containing materials; options for controlling asbestos-
containing building materials; asbestos management programs; and relevant federal and state
regulations. (40 CFR 763.84)

(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf- 4331 - Staff Development)

The designated employee shall ensure that the district complies with the following requirements:

1. School facilities shall be inspected for asbestos-containing materials as necessary in
accordance with the following:



AR 3514(f)

ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY (continued)

a. Any school building that is leased, acquired, or otherwise used by the district shall
be inspected for asbestos-containing materials prior to its use as a school building,
unless exempted by federal regulations. (40 CFR 763.85, 763.99)

b At least once every six months, the district shall conduct a periodic surveillance
consisting of a visual inspection of each school building that contains or is
assumed to contain asbestos-containing building materials. (40 CFR 763.92)

o At least once every three years, the district shall conduct a re-inspection of all
known or assumed asbestos-containing building materials in each school building.
(40 CFR 763.85)

Based on the results of the inspection, an appropriate response which is sufficient to
protect human health and the environment shall be determined from among the options
specified in 40 CFR 763.90. The district may select the least burdensome response,
taking into consideration local circumstances, including occupancy and use patterns
within the school building and economic concerns such as short-term and long-term
costs. (40 CFR 763.90)

An asbestos management plan for each school site shall be maintained and regularly
updated to keep it current with ongoing operations and maintenance, periodic
surveillance, inspection, re-inspection, and response action activities. (15 USC 2643; 40
CFR 763.93)

The asbestos management plan shall be available for inspection in district and school
offices during normal business hours. Parent/guardian, teacher, and employee
organizations shall be annually informed of the availability of these plans. (40 CFR
763.84, 763.93)

(cf 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

4,

Staff, students, and parents/guardians shall be informed at least once each school year
about any inspections, response actions, and post-response actions, including periodic re-
inspection and surveillance activities, that are planned or in progress. (40 CFR 763.84)

Inspections, re-inspections, periodic surveillance, and response actions, including
operations and maintenance, shall be conducted in compliance with state and federal
regulations for the protection and safety of workers and all other individuals. (Education
Code 49410.5; 40 CFR 763.84)



AR 3514(g)

ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY (continued)

Asbestos inspection and abatement work, preparation of a management plan, and any
maintenance activities that may disturb asbestos-containing building materials, except for
emergency repairs or small-scale, short-duration maintenance activities, shall be
completed by state-certified asbestos inspectors or contractors. (15 USC 2646; 40 CFR
763.84, 763.85, 763.91)

6. All custodial and maintenance employees shall be properly trained in accordance with
applicable federal and/or state regulations. (40 CFR 763.84)

All district maintenance and custodial staff who may work in a building that contains
asbestos-containing materials, regardless of whether they are required to work with such
materials, shall receive at least two hours of related asbestos awareness training. New
maintenance and custodial staff shall receive such training within 60 days after beginning
employment. Any maintenance or custodial staff who conduct activities that will disturb
asbestos-containing materials shall receive 14 hours of additional training. The trainings
shall address the topics specified in 40 CFR 763.92. (15 USC 2655; 40 CFR 763.84,
763.92)

7, Short-term workers, such as telephone repair workers, utility workers, or exterminators,
who may come in contact with asbestos in a school shall be provided information
regarding the locations of known or suspected asbestos-containing building materials.
(40 CFR 763.84)

8. Warning labels shall be posted immediately adjacent to any known or suspected asbestos-
containing building material located in routine maintenance areas in accordance with 40
CFR 763.95. (40 CFR 763.84)

The district shall maintain, in both the district and school offices and for a period of three years,
records pertaining to each preventive measure and response action taken; staff training; periodic
surveillances conducted; cleaning, operations, and maintenance activities; and any fiber release
episode. (40 CFR 763.94)

Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
approved: May 2018



Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3514.1(a)
HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES

The Governing Board desires to provide a safe school environment that protects students and
employees from exposure to any potentially hazardous substances used in the district's
educational program and in the maintenance and operation of district facilities and equipment.

(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety)

(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens)
(cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety)

(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)

(¢f. 5142 - Safety)

Insofar as reasonably possible, the Superintendent or designee shall minimize the quantities of
hazardous substances stored and used on school property. When hazardous substances must be
used, the Superintendent or designee shall give preference to materials that cause the least risk to
people and the environment.

(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations)
(cf. 3514.2 - Integrated Pest Management)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all potentially hazardous substances on district
properties are inventoried, used, stored, and regularly disposed of in a safe and legal manner.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop, implement, and maintain a written hazard
communication program in accordance with 8 CCR 5194 and shall ensure that employees,
students, and others as necessary are fully informed about the properties and potential hazards of
substances to which they may be exposed.

(cf- 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)

The Superintendent or designee shall develop specific measures to ensure the safety of students
and staff in school laboratories where hazardous chemicals are used. Such measures shall include
the development and implementation of a chemical hygiene plan in accordance with 8 CCR 5191
and instruction to students about proper handling of hazardous substances.

(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction)

The Superintendent or designee shall not order or purchase for use in grades K-6 any arts and
crafts materials containing a substance determined by the California Office of Environmental
Health Hazard Assessment to be toxic. The Superintendent or designee shall not purchase any
such toxic material for use in grades 7-12 unless it includes a warning label as specified in
Education Code 32065 that identifies any toxic ingredients, warns of potential adverse health
cffects, and describes procedures for safe use and storage. (Education Code 32064)

Legal Reference. (see next page)



BP 3514.1(b)
HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
32060-32066 Toxic art supplies in schools
49340-49341 Huazardous substances education
49401.5 Legislative intent; consultation services
49411 Chemical listing; compounds used in school programs, determination of shelf life; disposal
FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL CODE
12981 Regulations re pesticides and worker safety
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
25163 Transportation of hazardous wastes, registration; exemptions, inspection
25500-25520 Hazardous materials release response plans; inventory
108100-108515 California Hazardous Substances Act
LABOR CODE
6360-6363 Hazardous Substances Information and Training Act
6380-6386 List of hazardous substances
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8
339 List of hazardous substances
3203 Hiness and injury prevention program
3204 Records of employee exposure to toxic or harmful substances
5139-5230 Control of hazardous substances, especially
5154.1-5154.2 Ventilation
5161 Definitions
5162 Emergency evewash and shower equipment
5163 Control of spills
5164 Storage of hazardous substances
5191 Occupational exposure to hazardous chemicals in laboratories; chemical hyvgiene plan
5194 Hazard communication
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 22
67450.40-67450.49 School hazardous waste collection, consolidation, and accumulation facilities

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Science Safety Handbook for California Public Schools, 2012
" CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH HAZARD ASSESSMENT PUBLICATIONS
Art and Craft Materials in Schools: Guidelines forr Purchasing and Safe Use, September 17, 2016
WEB SITES
CSBA: http:/twww.csha.org
California Department of Education: hitip://cde.ca.gov
California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment: http://www.oehha.ca.gov
Department of Industrial Relations, Cal/OSHA: http:/fwww.dir.ca.gov/dosh

Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
adopted: May 2018



Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3516(a)
EMERGENCIES AND DISASTER PREPAREDNESS PLAN

The Governing Board recognizes that all district staff and students must be prepared to respond
quickly and responsibly to emergencies, disasters, and threats of disaster. The district shall take
all reasonable steps to prevent and/or mitigate the impact of a disaster on district students, staff,
and schools.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and maintain a disaster preparedness plan which
contains routine and emergency disaster procedures, including, but not limited to, earthquake
emergency procedures, and adaptations for individuals with disabilities in accordance with the
Americans with Disabilities Act. Such procedures shall be incorporated into the comprehensive
school safety plan. (Education Code 32282)

(cf- 0400 - Comprehensive Plans)
(cf: 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)
(cf- 3516.3 - Earthquake Emergency Procedure System)

In developing the disaster preparedness plan, the Superintendent or designee shall involve
district staff at all levels, including administrators, district police or security officers, facilities
managers, transportation managers, food services personnel, school psychologists, counselors,
school nurses, teachers, classified employees, and public information officers. As appropriate,
he/she shall also collaborate with law enforcement, fire safety officials, emergency medical
services, health and mental health professionals, parents/guardians, and students.

(cf- 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)
(¢f- 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)
(cf- 3513.3 - District Police/Security Department)

The plan shall comply with state-approved Standardized Emergency Management System
(SEMS) guidelines established for multiple-jurisdiction or multiple-agency operations and with
the National Incident Management System.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to employees regarding their
responsibilities, including periodic drills and exercises to test and refine staff's responsiveness in
the event of an emergency.

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf- 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf 4331 - Staff Development)

The Board shall grant the use of school buildings, grounds, and equipment to public agencies,
including the American Red Cross, for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other
emergencies affecting the public health and welfare. The Board shall cooperate with such
agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever services the district may deem necessary to

meet the community's needs. (Education Code 32282)
(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities)



BP 3516(b)

EMERGENCIES AND DISASTER PREPAREDNESS PLAN (continued)

District employees are considered disaster service workers and are subject to disaster service
activities assigned to them. (Government Code 3100)

(cf 4112.3/4212.3/4312.3 - Oath or Affirmation)
(cf 4119.3/4219.3/4319.3 - Duties of Personnel)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
32001 Fire alarms and drills
32040 Duiy to equip school with first aid kit
32280-32289 School safety plans
32290 Safety devices
39834 Operating overloaded bus
46390-46392 Emergency average daily attendance in case of disaster
49505 Natural disaster; meals for homeless students; reimbursement
CIVIL CODE
1714.5 Release from liability for disaster service workers and shelters
GOVERNMENT CODE
3100-3109 Public employees as disaster service workers; oath or affirmation
8607 Standardized emergency management system
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION
Article 20, Section 3 Qath or affirmation
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
550 Fire drills
560 Civil defense and disaster preparedness plans
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 19
2400-2450 Standardized emergency management system
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Crisis Response Box, 2000
CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES PUBLICATIONS
Active Shooter Awareness Guidance, February 2018
State of California Emergency Plan, 2017
School Emergency Response: Using SEMS at Districts and Sites, June 1998
FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY PUBLICATIONS
National Incident Management System, 3rd ed., October 2017
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Guide for Developing High-Ouality School Emergency Operations Plans, 2013

Management Resources continued. (see next page)



BP 3516(c)

EMERGENCIES AND DISASTER PREPAREDNESS PLAN (continued)

Management Resources: (continued)
WEB SITES
CSBA: http:.//iwww.csha.org
American Red Cross: http://www.redcross.org
California Attorney General's Office: https://oag.ca.gov
California Department of Education, Crisis Preparedness: http://www.cde.ca.gov/Is/ss/cp
California Governor's Office of Emergency Services: htip://www.caloes.ca.gov
California Seismic Safety Commission: http://www.seismic.ca.gov
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: http://www.cdc.gov
Federal Emergency Management Agency: http://www.fema.gov
U.S. Department of Education, Emergency Planning:
hitp:/iwww2.ed. gov/admins/lead/safety/crisisplanning. html
U.S. Department of Homeland Securitv: http.//mwww.dhs.gov



Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3516(a)
EMERGENCIES AND DISASTER PREPAREDNESS PLAN

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that district and/or school site plans address, at a
minimum, the following types of emergencies and disasters:

1. Fire on or off school grounds which endangers students and staff

(cf. 3516.1 - Fire Drills and Fires)

2. Earthquake, flood, or other natural disasters

(cf: 3516.3 - Earthquake Emergency Procedure System)

3. Environmental hazards, such as leakages or spills of hazardous materials

(¢f- 3514 - Environmental Safety)
(cf- 3514.2 - Integrated Pest Management)

4, Attack or disturbance, or threat of attack or disturbance, by an individual or group

(cf. 3515.2 - Disruptions)
(cf. 3515.7 - Firearms on School Grounds)
(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances)

5. Bomb threat or actual detonation

(cf- 3516.2 - Bomb Threats)

6. Biological, radiological, chemical, and other activities, or heightened warning of such
activities
Ts Medical emergencies and quarantines, such as a pandemic influenza outbreak

(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's procedures include strategies and
actions for prevention/mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery, including, but not
limited to, the following:

I, Regular inspection of school facilities and equipment, identification of risks, and
implementation of strategics and measures to increase the safety and security of school
facilities

(cf. 3513.3 - District Police/Security Department)
(cf. 3515 - Campus Security)

(¢f: 3517 - Facilities Inspection)

(cf 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance)



AR 3516(b)

EMERGENCIES AND DISASTER PREPAREDNESS PLAN (continued)

2. Instruction for district staff and students regarding emergency plans, including;

d.

b.

Training of staff in first aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation

Regular practice of emergency procedures by students and staff

(cf- 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

3. Specific determination of roles and responsibilities of staff during a disaster or other
emergency, including determination of’

a. The appropriate chain of command at the district and, if communication between
the district and site is not possible, at each site

b. Individuals responsible for specific duties

o Designation of the principal for the overall control and supervision of activities at
each school during an emergency, including authorization to use his/her discretion
in situations which do not permit execution of prearranged plans

d. Identification of at least one person at each site who holds a valid certificate in
first aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation

& Assignment of responsibility for identification of injured persons and
administration of first aid

4, Personal safety and security, including:

a. Identification of areas of responsibility for the supervision of students

b. Procedures for the evacuation of students and staff, including posting of
evacuation routes

C. Procedures for the release of students, including a procedure to release students

(cf: 5141 - Health
(cf. 5142 - Safety)

when reference to the emergency card is not feasible

Care and Emergencies)



AR 3516(c)

EMERGENCIES AND DISASTER PREPAREDNESS PLAN (continued)

d. Identification of transportation needs, including a plan which allows bus seating
capacity limits to be exceeded when a disaster or hazard requires students to be
moved immediately to ensure their safety

(cf. 3543 - Transportation Safety and Emergencies)
e. Provision of a first aid kit to each classroom

i Arrangements for students and staff with special needs

(¢f. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation)
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(cf- 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

g. Upon notification that a pandemic situation exists, adjustment of attendance
policies for students and sick leave policies for staff with known or suspected
pandemic influenza or other infectious disease

(cf. 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal lllness/Injury Leave)
(cf 4261.1 - Personal lliness/Injury Leave)

(cf 5113 - Absences and Excuses)

(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction)

S. Closure of schools, including an analysis of:
a. The impact on student learning and methods to ensure continuity of instruction
b. How to provide for continuity of operations for essential central office functions,

such as payroll and ongoing communication with students and parents/guardians

(cf. 3516.5 - Emergency Schedules)

0. Communication among staff, parents/guardians, the Governing Board, other
governmental agencies, and the media during an emergency, including:

a. Identification of spokesperson(s)
(cf 1112 - Media Relations)

b. Development and testing of communication platforms, such as hotlines, telephone
trees, web sites, social media, and electronic notifications



AR 3516(d)

EMERGENCIES AND DISASTER PREPAREDNESS PLAN (continued)

(cf- 1113 - District and School Web Sites)
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)

C. Development of methods to ensure that communications are, to the extent
practicable, in a language and format that is easy for parents/guardians to
understand

d. Distribution of information about district and school site emergency procedures to

staff, students, and parents/guardians

p Cooperation with other state and local agencies, including:
a. Development of guidelines for law enforcement involvement and intervention
b. Collaboration with the local health department, including development of a

tracking system to alert the local health department of a substantial increase of
student or staff absenteeism as indicative of a potential outbreak of an infectious
disease

(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)

8. Steps to be taken after the disaster or emergency, including:
a. Inspection of school facilities
b. Provision of mental health services for students and staff, as needed

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

The Superintendent or designee shall assemble key information that would be needed in an
emergency. Such information may include, but is not limited to, a list of individuals and
organizations who should be contacted for assistance in an emergency, current layouts and
blueprints of school buildings, aerial photos of the campus, maps of evacuation routes and
alternate routes, a roster of employees with their work locations, student photographs and their
emergency contact information, a clearly labeled set of keys, location of first aid supplies, and
procedures and locations for turning off fire alarms, sprinklers, utilities, and other systems. Such
information shall be stored in a box in a secure, easily accessible location, with a duplicate kept
at another location in case the primary location is inaccessible.

Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
approved: May 2018



All Personnel BP 4158(a)
4258
EMPLOYEE SECURITY 4358

The Governing Board desires to provide a safe and orderly work environment for all employees.
As part of the district's comprehensive safety plan, the Superintendent or designee shall develop
strategies for protecting employees from potentially dangerous persons and situations and for
providing necessary assistance and support when emergency situations occur.

(cf- 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)
(cf 3515 - Campus Security)
(ef. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances)

Any employee against whom violence or any threat of violence has been directed in the
workplace shall notify the Superintendent or designee immediately. As appropriate, the
Superintendent or designee shall initiate legal and security measures to protect the employee and
others in the workplace.

The Superintendent or designee may pursue legal action on behalf of an employee against a
student or his/her parent/guardian to recover damages to the employee or his/her property caused
by the student's willful misconduct that occurred on district property, at a school or district
activity, or in retaliation for lawful acts of the employee in the performance of his/her duties.
(Education Code 48904, 48905)

(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District)

(cf 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or Damage)

(cf 4156.3/4256.3/4356.3 - Employee Property Reimbursement)
(cf. 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees receive training in crisis prevention
and intervention techniques in order to protect themselves and students. Staff development may
include training in classroom management, effective communication techniques, procedures for
responding to an active shooter situation, and crisis resolution.

(cf 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf- 4331 - Staff Development)

The Superintendent or designee also shall inform teachers, in accordance with law, of crimes and
offenses committed by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. (Education Code
48201, 49079, Welfare and Institutions Code 827)

The Superintendent or designee may make available at appropriate locations, including, but not
limited to, district and school offices, gyms, and classrooms, communication devices that would
enable two-way communication with law enforcement and others when emergencies occur,

(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies)



BP 4158(b)
4258
4358

EMPLOYEE SECURITY (continued)

Use of Pepper Spray

Employees shall not carry or possess pepper spray on school property or at school activities,
except when authorized by the Superintendent or designee for self-defense purposes. When
allowed, an employee may only possess pepper spray in accordance with administrative
regulations and Penal Code 22810. Any employee who is negligent or careless in the possession
or handling of pepper spray shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary measures.

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf- 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

Reporting of Injurious Objects

The Board requires employees to take immediate action upon being made aware that any person
is in possession of a weapon or unauthorized injurious object on school grounds or at a school-
related or school-sponsored activity. The employee shall use his/her own judgment as to the
potential danger involved and shall do one of the following:

L. Confiscate the object and deliver it to the principal immediately
2. Immediately notify the principal, who shall take appropriate action
3. Immediately call 911 and the principal

(cf. 3515.7 - Firearms on School Grounds)

(cf 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)

(¢f- 5144 - Discipline)

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

When informing the principal about the possession or seizure of a weapon or dangerous device,

the employee shall report the name(s) of persons involved, witnesses, location, and the
circumstances of any seizure.

Legal Reference: (see next page)



BP 4158(c)
4258
4358

EMPLOYEE SECURITY (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
32210-32212 Willful disturbance, public schools or meetings
32225-32226 Communication devices
35208 Liability insurance
35213 Reimbursement for loss, destruction or damage of school property
44014 Report of assault by pupil against school employee
44807 Duty concerning conduct of students
48201 Transfer of student records
48900-48926 Suspension or expulsion
49079 Notification to teacher, student who has engaged in acts re: grounds suspension or expulsion
49330-49335 Injurious objects
CIVIL CODE
51.7 Freedom from violence or intimidation
CODE QF CIVIL PROCEDURE
527.8 Workplace violence safety
GOVERNMENT CODE
995-996.4 Defense of public employees
3543.2 Scope of representation
PENAL CODE
71 Threatening public officers and employees and school officials
240-246.3 Assault and battery, especially:
241.3 Assault against school bus drivers
241.6 Assault on school emplovee including board member
243.3 Battery against school bus drivers
243.6 Battery against school employee including board member
245.5 Assault with deadly weapon against school employvee including board member
290 Regisiration of sex offenders
601 Trespass by person making credible threat
626-620.11 School crimes
646.9 Stalking
22810 Purchase, possession, and use of tear gas
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE
827 Juvenile court proceedings, reports; confidentiality
828.1 District police or security departinent, disclosure of juvenile records
COURT DECISIONS
City of San Jose v. William Garbett, (2010) 190 Cal. App. 4th 526

Management Resources.:
WEB SITES
CSBA: http:/iwww.csba.org
California Department of Education, Safe Schools and Violence Prevention Office:
http:/iwww.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss

Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
adopted: May 2018



All Personnel AR 4158(a)
4258
EMPLOYEE SECURITY 4358

An employee may use reasonable and necessary force for self-defense or defense of another
person, to quell a disturbance threatening physical injury to others or damage to property, or to
obtain possession of weapons or other dangerous objects within the control of a student.
(Education Code 44807, 49001)

(cf- 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)
(cf- 5144 - Discipline)

An employee shall promptly report to the principal or other immediate supervisor any attack,
assault, or physical threat made against him/her by a student or by any other individual in
relation to the employee's performance of his/her duties, and any action the employee took in
response. When appropriate, the employee and the principal or other immediate supervisor shall
report the incident to law enforcement.

(cf- 3515.2 - Disruptions)

Reports of attack, assault, or threat shall be forwarded immediately to the Superintendent or
designee.

(cf- 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District)
(cf- 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or Damage)
(¢f. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance)

Notice Regarding Student Offenses Committed While Under School Jurisdiction

The Superintendent or designee shall inform the teacher(s) of each student who, during the
previous three school years, has engaged in or is reasonably suspected to have engaged in any
act, except the possession or use of tobacco products, that would constitute a ground for
suspension or expulsion as specified in AR 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process.
This information shall be based upon district records maintained in the ordinary course of
business or records received from a law enforcement agency. (Education Code 49079)

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Dite Process)

Upon receiving a transfer student's record regarding acts committed by the student that resulted
in his/her suspension or expulsion, the Superintendent or designee shall inform the student's
teacher(s) that the student was suspended from school or expelled from his/her former district
and of the act that resulted in the suspension or expulsion. (Education Code 48201)

Information received by teacher(s) shall be received in confidence for the limited purpose for
which it was provided and shall not be further disseminated by the teacher. (Education Code
49079)



AR 4158(b)
4258
4358

EMPLOYEE SECURITY (continued)

Notice Regarding Student Offenses Committed While Outside School Jurisdiction

When a minor student has been found by a court of competent jurisdiction to have illegally used,
sold, or possessed a controlled substance or committed specified crimes involving serious acts of
violence, the district police or security department may provide written notification to the
Superintendent. (Welfare and Institutions Code 828.1)

(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department)

When informed by the court that a minor student has been found by a court to have committed
any felony or any misdemeanor involving curfew, gambling, alcohol, drugs, tobacco products,
carrying of weapons, a sex offense listed in Penal Code 290, assault or battery, larceny,
vandalism, or graffiti, the Superintendent or designee shall so inform the school principal.
(Welfare and Institutions Code 827)

The principal shall disseminate this information to any counselor who directly supervises or
reports on the student's behavior or progress. The principal shall also inform any teacher or
administrator directly supervising or reporting on the student's behavior or progress whom he/she
thinks may need the information so as to work with the student appropriately, avoid being
needlessly vulnerable, or protect others from vulnerability. (Welfare and Institutions Code 827)

Any court-initiated information that a teacher, counselor, or administrator receives shall be kept
confidential and used only to rehabilitate the student and protect other students and staff. The
information shall be further disseminated only when communication with the student,
parent/guardian, law enforcement staff, and probation officer is necessary to rehabilitate the
student or to protect students and staff. (Welfare and Institutions Code 827)

When a student is removed from school as a result of his/her offense, the Superintendent shall
hold the court's information in a separate confidential file until the student is returned to the
district. If the student is returned to a different district, the Superintendent shall transmit the
information provided by the student's parole or probation officer to the superintendent of the new
district of attendance. (Welfare and Institutions Code 827)

Any confidential file of court-initiated information shall be kept until the student becomes 18,
graduates from high school, or is released from juvenile court jurisdiction, whichever occurs
first, and shall then be destroyed. (Welfare and Institutions Code 827)



AR 4158(c)
4258
4358

EMPLOYEE SECURITY (continued)

Procedures to Maintain Confidentiality of Student Offenses

In order to maintain confidentiality when providing information about student offenses to
counselors and teachers of classes/programs to which a student is assigned, the principal or
designee shall send the staff member a written notification that one of his/her students has
committed an offense that requires his/her review of a student's file in the school office. This
notice shall not name or otherwise identify the student. The staff member shall be asked to initial
the notification and return it to the principal or designee. He/she shall also initial the student's file
when reviewing it in the school office.

Use of Pepper Spray

The Superintendent or designee shall notify employees of the district's policy prohibiting the
possession of pepper spray on school property or at school-related activities without prior
approval of the Superintendent or designee. Employees wishing to carry pepper spray shall
submit to the Superintendent or designee a written request setting forth the need for the pepper
spray. The Superintendent or designee shall notify the employee in writing as to whether the
request was approved or denied.

When approving an employee's request, the Superintendent or designee shall inform the
employee of the following conditions:

1. The pepper spray shall be used only in self-defense.

2, An employee who uses pepper spray other than in self-defense shall be subject to
disciplinary action by the district and, in accordance with law, a fine and/or
imprisonment.

(cf 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

3. The pepper spray must be stored in a secure place and not be accessible to students or
other individuals. Negligent storage of the pepper spray may subject the employee to
disciplinary action.

Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
approved: May 2018



All Personnel BP 4161.9
4261.9
CATASTROPHIC LEAVE PROGRAM 4361.9

The Governing Board recognizes that district employees may desire to assist other employees
who have an urgent need for a leave of absence but do not have sufficient accrued leave to cover
their absence. The Superintendent or designee shall establish a catastrophic leave program by
which employees may donate accrued vacation and/or sick leave credits, which shall be placed
into a pool for use by eligible employees.

Donations made under the catastrophic leave program shall be strictly voluntary.

The district's policy and procedures regarding catastrophic leave shall be included in the
employee handbook. The Superintendent or designee may notify employees annually, or more
frequently if the need arises, of the process for donating leave for this purpose.

An employee may apply to use donated leave credits in accordance with the accompanying
administrative regulation when he/she has exhausted all applicable paid leaves of absence and a
catastrophic illness or injury incapacitates the employee or a member of his/her family for an
extended period of time. (Education Code 44043.5)

(cf- 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves)

(cf. 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal lllness/Injury Leave)

(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave)
(cf 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
44043.5 Catastrophic leave
44977 Salary deduction during sick leave, certificated employees
44978 Sick leave, certificated employees
44983 Compensation during leave, certificated employees
45190-45191 Sick leave and vacation, classified employees
45196 Salary deductions during sick leave, classified employees
LABOR CODE
245-249 Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act

Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
adopted: May 2018



All Personnel AR 4161.9(a)
4261.9
CATASTROPHIC LEAVE PROGRAM 4361.9

Donations to Catastrophic Leave Program

An employee who chooses to donate accrued vacation and/or sick leave credits to the district's
catastrophic leave program shall provide written notice to the Superintendent or designee of the
amount and type of leave he/she wishes to donate. The Superintendent or designee shall review
the donor's available leave and transfer the leave credits to a district pool of leave credits
designated for this purpose.

Donations shall be at a minimum of eight hours, and in hour increments thereafter. (Education
Code 44043.5)

All transfers of eligible leave credit shall be irrevocable. (Education Code 44043.5)

Employees should be cautious in making large donations of leave that they may need for their
own use in the future.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all donations are confidential.
Requests for Catastrophic Leave

A full-time or part-time employee may apply to the Superintendent or designee to use paid leave
from the catastrophic leave program if he/she earns paid time off but has exhausted all his/her
accrued paid leave and needs to take time off from work for an extended period of time due to
his/her or a family member's catastrophic illness or injury. If the employee is incapacitated, a
family member or caretaker may apply on his/her behalf.

(cf 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves)

(cf 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave)

(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave)
(cf. 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave)

The employee shall provide verification of the illness or injury. (Education Code 44043.5)

Verification shall be made by means of a letter, dated and signed by the individual's health care
provider, indicating the incapacitating nature and probable duration of the illness or injury.

An employee may apply to receive up to 20 days of paid leave from the catastrophic leave
program per school year. At the end of the 20-day period, he/she may apply for up to 20 days of
additional leave credits.

Employees receiving compensation under worker's compensation provisions are not eligible to
receive leave from the catastrophic leave program until exhausting such benefit.

(cf. 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1 - Work-Related Injuries)



AR 4161.9(b)
4261.9
4361.9

CATASTROPHIC LEAVE PROGRAM (continued)

An employee who is the recipient of donated leave credits shall use those credits within 12
consecutive months. (Education Code 44043.5)

If donated leave credits are not used by the employee within 12 consecutive months, the credits
shall be returned to the pool of catastrophic leave for use by other eligible employees.

An employee who receives catastrophic leave shall use any leave credits that he/she continues to
accrue on a monthly basis before receiving paid leave pursuant to this program. (Education
Code 44043.5)

Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
approved: May 2018



Students BP 5111(a)

ADMISSION

The Governing Board encourages the enrollment and appropriate placement of all school-aged
children in school. The Superintendent or designee shall inform parents/guardians of children
seeking admission to a district school at any grade level about admission requirements and shall
assist them with enrollment procedures.

The Superintendent or designee shall announce and publicize the timeline and process for
registration of students at district schools. Applications for intradistrict or interdistrict enrollment
shall be subject to the timelines specified in applicable Board policies and administrative
regulations.

(cf 1112 - Media Relations)

(cf- 1113 - District and School Web Sites)
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)
(cf- 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment)
(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance)

(cf: 5118 - Open Enrollment Act Transfers)

All appropriate staff shall receive training on district admission policies and procedures,
including information regarding the types of documentation that can and cannot be requested.

The district's enrollment application shall include information about the health care options and
enrollment assistance available to families within the district. The district shall not discriminate
against any child for not having health care coverage and shall not use any information relating
to a child's health care coverage or his/her interest in learning about health care coverage in any
manner that would harm the child or his/her family. (Education Code 49452.9)

Verification of Admission Eligibility

Before enrolling any child in a district school, the Superintendent or designee shall verify the
child's age, residency, immunization, and other applicable eligibility criteria specified in law, the
accompanying administrative regulation, or other applicable Board policy or administrative
regulation.

(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency)

(cf 5125 - Student Records)

(¢f. 5141.3 - Health Examinations)

(cf' 5141.31 - Immunizations)

(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry)

The district shall not inquire into or request documentation of a student's social security number
or the last four digits of the social security number or the citizenship or immigration status of the
student or his/her family members. (Education Code 234.7, 49076.7)



BP 5111(b)

ADMISSION (continued)

(cf- 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf- 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement)
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

However, such information may be collected when required by state or federal law or to comply
with requirements for special state or federal programs. In any such situation, the information
shall be collected separately from the school enrollment process and the Superintendent or
designee shall explain the limited purpose for which the information is collected. Enrollment in a
district school shall not be denied on the basis of any such information of the student or his/her
parents/guardians obtained by the district, or the student's or parent/guardian's refusal to provide
such information to the district.

School registration information shall list all possible means of documenting a child's age for
grades K-1 as authorized by Education Code 48002 or otherwise prescribed by the Board. Any
alternative document allowed by the district shall be one that all persons can obtain regardless of
immigration status, citizenship status, or national origin and shall not reveal information related
to citizenship or immigrant status.

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately enroll a homeless student, foster youth,
student who has had contact with the juvenile justice system, or a child of a military family
regardless of outstanding fees or fines owed to the student's last school, lack of clothing normally
required by the school, such as school uniforms, or his/her inability to produce previous
academic, medical, or other records normally required for enrollment. (Education Code 48645.5,
48850, 48852.7, 48853.5, 49701; 42 USC 11432)

(cf: 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)

(cf 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

(¢f 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families)
(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students)

Legal Reference: (see next page)



BP 5111(c)

ADMISSION (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status
46300 Computation of average daily attendance, inclusion of kindergarten and transitional kindergarten
46600 Agreements for admission of students desiring interdistrict attendance
48000 Minimum age of admission (kindergarten)
48002 Evidence of mininum age required to enter kindergarten or first grade
48010 Minimum age of admission (first grade)
48011 Admission from kindergarten or other school; minimum age
48050-48053 Nonresidents
48200 Children between ages of 6 and 18 years (compulsory full-time education)
48350-48361 Open Enrollment Act
48645.5 Enrollment of former juvenile court school students
48850-48859 Educational placement of homeless and foster youth
49076 Access to records by persons without written consent or under judicial order
49076.7 Student records; data privacy, social security numbers
49408 Information of use in emergencies
49452.9 Health care coverage options and enrollment assistance
49700-49703 Education of children of military families
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
120325-120380 Education and child care facility immunization requirements
121475-121520 Tuberculosis tests for students
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
200 Promotion from kindergarten to first grade
201 Admission to high school
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17
6000-6075 School attendance immunization requirements
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 5
552a Note Refusal to disclose social security number
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act
COURT DECISIONS
Plyler v. Doe, 457 U.S. 202 (1982)

Muanagement Resources: (see next page)



BP 5111(d)

ADMISSION (continued)

Management Resources:

Policy

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of Immigration Status,
February 2017

CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS

Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All: Guidance and Model Policies to Assist
California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018

U.S. DEPARTMENT QF JUSTICE CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS JOINT PUBLICATIONS

Dear Colleague Letter: School Enrollment Procedures, May 8, 2014

Fact Sheet: Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School, May 8, 2014

Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School: Questions and Answers for States, School
Districts and Pavents, May 8, 2014

WEB SITES

CSBA: http:/twww.csba.org

California Department of Education, Health Care Coverage and Enrollment Assistance:
http:/iwww.cde.ca.govilsihethe

California Office of the Attorney General: hitp://oag.ca.gov

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http:/fiwww2.ed. gov/about/offices/list/ocr

U.S. Department of Justice: https.//www.justice.gov

CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE

adopted: May 2018



Students AR 5111(a)

ADMISSION

Age of Admittance to Kindergarten and First Grade

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall enroll any eligible
child who will have his/her fifth or sixth birthday on or before September 1 of that year into
kindergarten or first grade, as applicable. (Education Code 48000, 48010)

Any child who will have his/her fifth birthday from September 2 through December 2 of the
school year shall be offered a transitional kindergarten (TK) program in accordance with law and
Board policy. (Education Code 48000)

(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention)
(cf. 6170.1 - Transitional Kindergarten)

On a case-by-case basis, a child who will turn five years old in a given school year may be
enrolled in kindergarten or TK at any time during that school year with the approval of the
child's parent/guardian, provided that: (Education Code 48000)

1. The Governing Board determines that admittance is in the best interest of the child.

2 The parent/guardian is given information regarding the advantages and disadvantages and
any other explanatory information about the effect of this early admittance.

(cf- 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

The Superintendent or designee shall make a recommendation to the Board regarding whether a
child should be granted early entry to kindergarten. In doing so, the Superintendent or designee
shall consider various factors including the availability of classroom space and any negotiated
maximum class size.

(¢f. 6151 - Class Size)
(cf 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings)

Documentation of Age/Grade

Prior to the admission of a child to kindergarten or first grade, the parent/guardian shall present
proof of the child's age. (Education Code 48002)

Evidence of the child's age may include: (Education Code 48002)

1. A certified copy of a birth certificate or a statement by the local registrar or county
recorder certifying the date of birth



2 A duly attested baptism certificate
3. A passport
AR 5111(b)

ADMISSION (continued)

4, When none of the above documents is obtainable, an affidavit of the parent/guardian

5. Other means prescribed by the Board

Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
approved: May 2018



Students BP 5111.1(a)
DISTRICT RESIDENCY

The Governing Board desires to admit all students who reside within district boundaries or who
fulfill the district residency requirements through other means as allowed by law. The
Superintendent or designee shall develop procedures to facilitate the receipt and verification of
students' proof of residency.

(cf- 5116 - School Attendance Boundaries)

The Superintendent or designee shall annually notify parents/guardians of all existing attendance
options available in the district, including, but not limited to, all options for meeting residency
requirements for school attendance. (Education Code 48980)

(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment)
(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance)
(cf- 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

The Superintendent or designee shall require parents/guardians to provide documentation of the
student's residency upon admission to a district school. A copy of the document or written
statement offered as verification of residency shall be maintained in the student's mandatory
permanent record. (5 CCR 432)

(cf- 5111 - Admission)
(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

When establishing students' residency for enrollment purposes, the Superintendent or designee
shall not inquire into the citizenship or immigration status of students or their family members.

(cf. 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement)

A student's enrollment may be denied when the submitted documentation is insufficient to
establish district residency. In any such case, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the
parent/guardian in writing, including specific reasons for the denial.

Investigation of Residency

When the Superintendent or designee reasonably believes that a student's parent/guardian has
provided false or unreliable evidence of residency, he/she may make reasonable efforts to
determine that the student meets district residency requirements. An investigation may be
initiated when the Superintendent or designee is able to identify specific, articulable facts
supporting the belief that the parent/guardian has provided false or unreliable evidence of
residency. (Education Code 48204.1, 48204.2)

The Superintendent or designee may assign a trained district employee to conduct the
investigation. The investigation may include the examination of records, including public
records, and/or interviews of persons who may have knowledge of the student's residency.



BP 5111.1(b)
DISTRICT RESIDENCY (continued)

If necessary, the Superintendent or designee may employ the services of a private investigator to
conduct the investigation. Before hiring a private investigator, the Superintendent or designee
shall make other reasonable efforts to determine whether the student resides in the district.
(Education Code 48204.2)

The investigation shall not include the surreptitious collection of photographic or videographic
images of persons or places subject to the investigation. However, the use of technology is not
prohibited if done in open and public view. (Education Code 48204.2)

Any employee or contractor engaged in the investigation shall truthfully identify himself/herself
as an investigator to individuals contacted or interviewed during the course of the investigation.
(Education Code 48204.2)

Appeal of Enrollment Denial

If the Superintendent or designee, upon investigation, determines that a student does not meet
district residency requirements and denies the student's enrollment in the district, he/she shall
provide the student's parent/guardian an opportunity to appeal that determination. (Education
Code 48204.2)

The Superintendent or designee shall send the student's parent/guardian written notice specifying
the basis for the district's determination. This notice shall also inform the parent/guardian that
he/she may, within 10 school days, appeal the decision and provide new evidence of residency.

The burden shall be on the parent/guardian to show why the district's determination to deny
enrollment should be overruled. (Education Code 48204.2)

A student who is currently enrolled in the district shall be allowed to remain in attendance at
his/her school pending the results of the appeal. A student who is not currently enrolled in the
district shall not be permitted to attend any district school unless his/her appeal is successful.

In an appeal of the Superintendent's determination that district residency requirements were not
met, the Board shall review any evidence provided by the parent/guardian or obtained during the
district's investigation and shall make a decision at its next regularly scheduled meeting
following the parent/guardian's request for the appeal. The Board's decision shall be final.



BP 5111.1(c)

DISTRICT RESIDENCY (continued)

Enrollment Not Requiring District Residency

When approved by the Board and the appropriate agency, the district may enroll students from
other countries who are in the United States on an F-1 visa or are participating in an international
exchange program under the sponsorship of a government-approved agency.

(cf. 5111.2 - Nonresident Foreign Students)
(cf. 6145.6 - International Exchange)

The district may enroll a nonresident student living in an adjoining state or foreign country in
accordance with Education Code 48050-48052.

District residency is not required for enrollment in a regional occupational center or program if
there are openings in the program or class. (Education Code 52317)

(¢cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program)

Legal Reference: (see next page)



BP 5111.1(d)

DISTRICT RESIDENCY (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
220 Prohibition of discrimination
234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status
35160.5 Intradistrict open enrollment
35351 Assignment of students to particular schools
46600-46611 Interdistrict attendance permits
48050-48054 Nonresidents
48200-48208 Compulsory education law, especially:
48204 Residency requirements
48204.1-48204.4 Evidence of residency
48300-48317 Student attendance alternatives, school district of choice program
48350-48361 Open Enrollment Act transfers
48645.5 Former juvenile court school students, enrollment
48852.7 Education of homeless students, immediate enrollment
48853.5 Education of foster youth; immediate enrollment
48980 Notifications at beginning of term
52317 Regional occupational program, admission of persons including nonresidents
FAMILY CODE
6550-6552 Caregivers
GOVERNMENT CODE
6205-6210 Confidentiality of residence for victims of domestic violence
CODE OF REGULATIONS. TITLE 5§
432 Retention of student records
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE §
1229¢ Immigration and Nationality Act
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act
COURT DECISIONS
Katz v. Los Guatos-Saratoga Joint Union High School District, (2004) 117 Cal. App.4th 47
Plvler v. Doe, 457 U.S. 202 (1982)

Management Resources: (see next page)



BP 5111.1(e)

DISTRICT RESIDENCY (continued)

Management Resources:

Policy

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of Immigration Status,
February 2017

Legal Guidance Regarding International Student Exchange Placement Organizations, April 2014
CALIFORNIA ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE PUBLICATIONS

Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All: Guidance and Model Policies to Assist
California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS JOINT PUBLICATIONS

Dear Colleague Letter: School Enrollinent Procedures, May 8, 2014

Fact Sheet: Information on the Rights of AIl Children to Enroll in School, May 8, 2014

Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School: Questions and Answers for States, School
Districts and Parents, May 8, 2014

WEB SITES

CSBA: http:/fiwww.csba.org

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

California Office of the Attorney General: http://oag.ca.gov

California Secretary of State, Safe at Home Program: http://www.sos.ca.gov/safeathome

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: hitp://www2.ed.gov/ocr

U.S. Department of Justice: hitps://www_justice.gov

CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE

adopted: May 2018



Students AR 5111.1(a)
DISTRICT RESIDENCY

Criteria for Residency

A student shall be deemed to have complied with district residency requirements for enrollment
in a district school if he/she meets any of the following criteria:

1.

2.

The student's parent/guardian resides within district boundaries. (Education Code 48200)

The student is placed within district boundaries in a regularly established licensed
children's institution, a licensed foster home, or a family home pursuant to a court-
ordered commitment or placement. (Education Code 48204)

The student is admitted through an interdistrict attendance option. (Education Code
46600, 48204, 48301, 48356)

(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance)
(cf. 5118 - Open Enrollment Act Transfers)

4,

6.

The student is an emancipated minor residing within district boundaries. (Education
Code 48204)

The student lives with a caregiving adult within district boundaries and the caregiving
adult submits an affidavit to that effect. (Education Code 48204)

The student resides in a state hospital located within district boundaries. (Education
Code 48204)

The student is confined to a hospital or other residential health facility within district
boundaries for treatment of a temporary disability. (Education Code 48204, 48207)

(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction)

8.

The student's parent/guardian resides outside district boundaries but is employed within
district boundaries and lives with the student at the place of employment for a minimum
of three days during the school week. (Education Code 48204)

The student's parent/guardian, while on active military duty pursuant to an official
military order, 1s transferred or is pending transfer to a military installation within the
state. (Education Code 48204.3)

(¢f. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families)

10.

The student's parent/guardian was a resident of California who departed the state against
his/her will due to a transfer by a government agency that had custody of the



AR 5111.1(b)

DISTRICT RESIDENCY (continued)

parent/guardian, a lawful order from a court or government agency authorizing his/her
removal, or removal or departure pursuant to the federal Immigration and Nationality
Act, and the student lived in California immediately before moving out of state as a result
of his/her parent/guardian's departure. (Education Code 48204.4)

(cf. 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement)
Residency Based on Parent/Guardian Employment (Allen Bill Transfers)

District residency status may be granted to a student if at least one of his/her parents/guardians is
physically employed within district boundaries for a minimum of 10 hours during the school
week. No student seeking residency on this basis shall be denied enrollment based on race,
ethnicity, sex, parental income, scholastic achievement, or any of the individual characteristics
set forth in Education Code 220. However, the Superintendent or designee may deny enrollment
into the district if any of the following circumstances is present: (Education Code 48204)

1. The additional cost of educating the student would exceed the amount of additional state
aid received as a result of the transfer.

2. Enrollment of the student would adversely affect the district's court-ordered or voluntary
desegregation plan as determined by the Governing Board.

3 Other circumstances exist that are not arbitrary.

Such circumstances may include, but are not limited to, overcrowding of school facilities
at the relevant grade level.

Once a student establishes residency on this basis, he/she shall not be required to reapply for
enrollment in subsequent years. The student may continue to attend school in the district through
the highest grade level offered by the district if the parent/guardian so chooses and if at least one
parent/guardian of the student continues to be physically employed by an employer situated
within district boundaries, subject to the exceptions in items #1-3 above. (Education Code
48204)

The Superintendent or designee may deny a transfer out of the district by a student whose
parent/guardian is employed within the boundaries of another district if the difference between
the number of students entering and exiting the district on the basis of parent/guardian
employment exceeds the limits prescribed in Education Code 48204. (Education Code 48204)



AR 5111.1(c)
DISTRICT RESIDENCY (continued)
Proof of Residency
The district shall not solicit or collect information or documents regarding the citizenship or
immigration status of students or their family members for the purpose of determining residency
within the district. (Education Code 234.7)
Evidence of residency may be established by documentation showing the name and address of

the parent/guardian within the district, including, but not limited to, any of the following:
(Education Code 48204.1)

l. Property tax payment receipt

2. Rental property contract, lease, or payment receipt

3. Utility service contract, statement, or payment receipt

4, Pay stub

5 Voter registration

6. Correspondence from a government agency

i Declaration of residency executed by the student's parent/guardian

8. If the student is an unaccompanied youth as defined in 42 USC 11434a, a declaration of

residency executed by the student

9. If the student is residing in the home of a caregiving adult within district boundaries, an
affidavit executed by the caregiving adult in accordance with Family Code 6552

(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies)

A parent/guardian seeking residency status on the basis of his/her employment within district
boundaries shall submit proof of the employment which may include, but not be limited to, a
paycheck stub or letter from his/her employer listing a physical address within district
boundaries. Such evidence shall also indicate the number of hours or days per school week that
the parent/guardian is employed at that location.

A parent/guardian who is transferred or pending transfer into a military installation within the
state shall provide proof of residence in the district within 10 days after the published arrival date
provided on official documentation. For this purpose, he/she may use as his/her address a
temporary on-base billeting facility, a purchased or leased home or apartment, or federal
government or public-private venture off-base military housing. (Education Code 48204.3)



AR 5111.1(d)

DISTRICT RESIDENCY (continued)

A student whose parent/guardian's departure from the state occurred against his/her will pursuant
to item #10 in the section "Criteria for Residency" above shall be in compliance with district
residency requirements if he/she provides official documentation of the parent/guardian's
departure and evidence demonstrating that the student was enrolled in a public school in
California immediately before moving outside the state. (Education Code 48204.4)

Any homeless or foster youth or student who has had contact with the juvenile justice system
shall be immediately enrolled in school even if he/she is unable to provide proof of residency.
(Education Code 48645.5, 48852.7, 48853.5; 42 USC 11432)

(cf: 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)
(cf- 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)
(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students)

Safe at Home/Confidential Address Program

When a student or parent/guardian participating in the Safe at Home program requests that the
district use the substitute address designated by the Secretary of State, the Superintendent or
designee may request the actual residence address for the purpose of establishing residency
within district boundaries but shall use the substitute address for all future communications and
correspondence and shall not include the actual address in.the student's file or any other public
record. (Government Code 6206, 6207)

(cf- 3580 - District Records)

Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
approved: May 2018



Students BP 5125(a)

STUDENT RECORDS

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of keeping accurate, comprehensive student
records as required by law. The Superintendent or designee shall establish administrative
regulations governing the identification, collection, retention, and security of student records.
These regulations shall ensure the rights of authorized persons to have timely access to student
records while maintaining the confidentiality of student records consistent with state and federal
law.

(cf. 3580 - District Records)

(cf 4040 - Employee Use of Technology)

(cf- 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information)
(cf- 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records)

The Superintendent or designee shall designate a certificated employee to serve as custodian of
records with responsibility for student records at the district level. At each school, the principal
or a certificated employee shall be designated as custodian of records for students enrolled at that
school. The custodian of records shall be responsible for implementing Board policy and
administrative regulation regarding student records. (5 CCR 431)

All appropriate personnel shall receive training regarding district policies and procedures for
gathering and handling sensitive student information.

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf- 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

The district shall not collect or solicit social security numbers or the last four digits of social
security numbers of students or their parents/guardians, unless otherwise required to do so by
state or federal law. (Education Code 49076.7)

No information or documents regarding the citizenship or immigration status of students or their
family members shall be collected, except as required by state or federal law or as required to
administer a state or federally supported educational program. The Superintendent or designee
shall not disclose student records to a person, agency, or organization for immigration
enforcement purposes without parental consent, a court order, or a judicial subpoena. If a district
employee receives such a request, he/she shall immediately report the request to the
Superintendent. The Superintendent shall report the request to the Board in a timely manner that
ensures the confidentiality and privacy of any potentially identifying information. (Education
Code 234.7)

(¢cf: 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement)

The Superintendent or designee shall not compile a list, registry, or database based on students'
national origin, ethnicity, or religious belief, practice, or affiliation, nor shall he/she disclose
student information to federal government authorities for the purpose of compiling



BP 5125(b)
STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

such a list, registry, or database for purposes of immigration enforcement. Such information
may only be compiled or exchanged with other local, state, or federal agencies if the information
1s aggregated and is not personally identifiable. (Government Code 8310.3)

Student Records from Social Media

The Superintendent or designee may gather and maintain information from the social media of
any district student, provided that the district first notifies students and parents/guardians about
the proposed program, offers an opportunity for public comment at a regularly scheduled Board
meeting, and gathers only information that directly pertains to school safety or student safety.
(Education Code 49073.6)

(cf- 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)
(¢f- 5131.2 - Bullying)

(cf 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)
(cf- 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)
(cf 9323 - Meeting Conduct)

Contract for Digital Storage, Management, and Retrieval of Student Records

The Superintendent or designee may enter into a contract with a third party for the digital
storage, management, and retrieval of student records and/or to authorize a third party provider
of digital software to access, store, and use student records, provided that the contract meets the
requirements of Education Code 49073.1 and other applicable state and federal laws.

(cf- 3312 - Contracts)

Legal Reference: (see next page)



BP 5125(c])
STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE
234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status
17604 Contracts
48201 Student records for transfer students who have been suspended/expelled
48853.5 Foster youth; placement, immunizations
48902 Notification of law enforcement of specified violations
48904-48904.3 Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts
48918 Rules governing expulsion procedures
48980 Parental notifications
48985 Notices in parent/guardian’s primary language
49060-49079 Student records
49091.14 Parental review of curriculum
51747 Independent study
56041.5 Rights of students with disabilities
56050 Surrogate parents
36055 Foster parents
69432.9 Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE
22580-22582 Digital privacy
22584-22585 Student Online Personal Information Protection Act
22586-22587 Early Learning Personal Information Protection Act
CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE
1985.3 Subpoena duces tecum
FAMILY CODE
3025 Access to records by noncustodial parents

- 6352 Caregiver's authorization affidavit
GOVERNMENT CODE
6252-6260 Inspection of public records
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
120440 Immunizations, disclosure of information
PENAL CODE
245 Assault with deadly weapon
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE
681 Truancy petitions
701 Juvenile court law
16010 Health and education records of a minor
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
430-438 Individual student records
16020-16027 Destruction of records of school districts
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
1232g Familv Educational Rights and Privacy Act
1232h Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 26
152 Definition of dependent child
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
11434a McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act; definitions

Legal Reference continued. (see next page)



BP 5125(d)

STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

Legal Reference: (continued)
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 16
Part 312 Children's Online Privacy Protection Rule
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy
300.501 Opportunity to examine records for parents of student with disability

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of Immigration Status,
February 2017
CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS
Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All: Guidance and Model Policies to Assist
California’s K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018
FEDERAL REGISTER
Final Rule and Analysis of Comments and Changes, Family Educational Rights and Privacy, December 9,
2008, Vol. 73, No. 237, pages 74806-74855
NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS
Data in the Cloud: A Legal and Policy Guide for School Boards on Student Data Privacy in the Cloud
Computing Era, April 2014
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
IDEA and FERPA Confidentiality Provisions, 2014
Joint Guidance on the Application of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and the
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) to Student Health Records, 2008
Balancing Student Privacy and School Safetv: A Guide to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act

for Elementary and Secondary Schools, October 2007

WEB SITES

CSBA: hup:/iwww.csba.org

California Department of Education: hitp:/iwww.cde.ca.gov

National School Boards Association: http://www.nsha.org

U.S. Department of Education, Family Policy Compliance, http:/www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco

Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
adopted: May 2018



Students AR 5125(a)

STUDENT RECORDS

Definitions

Student means any individual who is or has been in attendance at the district and regarding
whom the district maintains student records. (34 CFR 99.3)

Attendance includes, but is not limited to, attendance in person or by paper correspondence,
videoconference, satellite, Internet, or other electronic information and telecommunication
technologies for students who are not physically present in the classroom, and the period during
which a person is working under a work-study program. (34 CFR 99.3)

Student records are any items of information (in handwriting, print, tape, film, computer, or
other medium) gathered within or outside the district that are directly related to an identifiable
student and maintained by the district, required to be maintained by an employee in the
performance of his/her duties, or maintained by a party acting for the district. Any information
maintained for the purpose of second-party review is considered a student record. Student
records include the student's health record. (Education Code 49061, 49062; 5 CCR 430; 34 CFR
99.3)

Student records do not include: (Education Code 49061, 49062; 5 CCR 430; 34 CFR 99.3)
1. Directory information
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information)

2 Informal notes compiled by a school officer or employee which remain in the sole
possession of the maker, are used only as a personal memory aid, and are not accessible
or revealed to any other person except a substitute employee

3. Records of the law enforcement unit of the district, subject to 34 CFR 99.8

(cf. 3515 - Campus Security)
(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department)

4. Records created or received by the district after an individual is no longer a student and
that are not directly related to the individual's attendance as a student

3. Grades on peer-graded papers before they are collected and recorded by a teacher

Mandatory permanent student records are those records which are maintained in perpetuity and
which schools have been directed to compile by state law, regulation, or administrative directive.
(5 CCR 430)

Mandatory interim student records are those records which the schools are directed to compile
and maintain for specified periods of time and are then destroyed in accordance with state law,
regulation, or administrative directive. (5 CCR 430)



AR 5125(b)

STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

Permitted student records are those records having clear importance only to the current
educational process of the student. (5 CCR 430)

Disclosure means to permit access to, or the release, transfer, or other communication of,
personally identifiable information contained in student records to any party, except the party
that provided or created the record, by any means including oral, written, or electronic. (34 CFR
99.3)

Access means a personal inspection and review of a record or an accurate copy of a record, or
receipt of an accurate copy of a record or an oral description or communication of a record, and a

request to release a copy of any record. (Education Code 49061)

Personally identifiable information includes, but is not limited to: (34 CFR 99.3)

1. The student's name

2. The name of the student's parent/guardian or other family members

3. The address of the student or student's family

4. A personal identifier, such as the student's social security number, student number, or

biometric record (e.g., fingerprints, retina and iris patterns, voiceprints, DNA sequence,
facial characteristics, and handwriting)

5, Other indirect identifiers, such as the student's date of birth, place of birth, and mother's
maiden name

0. Other information that, alone or in combination, is linked or linkable to a specific student
that would allow a reasonable person in the school community, who does not have
personal knowledge of the relevant circumstances, to identify the student with reasonable
certainty

g Information requested by a person who the district reasonably believes knows the identity
of the student to whom the student record relates

Adult student 1s a person who 1s or was enrolled in school and who is at least 18 years of age. (5
CCR 430)

Parent/guardian means a natural parent, an adopted parent, legal guardian, surrogate parent, or
foster parent. (Education Code 49061, 56050, 56055)



AR 5125(c)

STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

Legitimate educational interest is an interest held by any school official, employee, contractor, or
consultant whose duties, responsibilities, or contractual obligations to the district, whether
routine or as a result of special circumstances, require him/her to have access to student records.

School officials and employees are officials or employees whose duties and responsibilities to the
district, whether routine or as a result of special circumstances, require that they have access to
student records.

Contractor or consultant is anyone with a formal written agreement or contract with the district
regarding the provision of services or functions outsourced to him/her by the district. Contractor
or consultant shall not include a volunteer or other party. (Education Code 49076)

Custodian of records is the employee responsible for the security of student records maintained
by the district and for devising procedures for assuring that access to such records is limited to

authorized persons. (5 CCR 433)

County placing agency means the county social service department or county probation
department. (Education Code 49061)

Persons Granted Absolute Access
In accordance with law, absolute access to any student records shall be granted to:

1. Parents/guardians of students younger than age 18 years, including the parent who is not
the student's custodial parent (Education Code 49069; Family Code 3025)

2, An adult student, or a student under the age of 18 years who attends a postsecondary
institution, in which case the student alone shall exercise rights related to his/her student

records and grant consent for the release of records (34 CFR 99.3, 99.5)

%, Parents/guardians of an adult student with disabilities who is age 18 years or older and
has been declared incompetent under state law (Education Code 56041.5)

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
Access for Limited Purpose/Legitimate Educational Interest

The following persons or agencies shall have access to those particular records that are relevant
to their legitimate educational interest or other legally authorized purpose:



AR 5125(d)

STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

1.

Parents/guardians of a student age 18 or older who is a dependent child as defined under
26 USC 152 (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

Students who are age 16 or older or who have completed the 10th grade (Education Code
49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

School officials and employees, consistent with the definition provided in the section
"Definitions" above (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

Members of a school attendance review board (SARB) who are authorized
representatives of the district and any volunteer aide age 18 or older who has been
investigated, selected, and trained by the SARB to provide follow-up services to a
referred student (Education Code 49076)

(¢f: 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)
(cf. 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board)

5

Officials and employees of other public schools, school systems, or postsecondary
institutions where the student intends or is directed to enroll, including local, county, or
state correctional facilities where educational programs leading to high school graduation
are provided, or where the student is already enrolled, as long as the disclosure is for
purposes related to the student's enrollment or transfer (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR
99.31)

Unless the annual parent/guardian notification issued pursuant to Education Code 48980
includes a statement that the district may disclose students' personally identifiable
information to officials of another school, school system, or postsecondary institution
where the student seeks or intends to enroll, the Superintendent or designee shall, when
such a disclosure is made, make a reasonable attempt to notify the parent/guardian or
adult student at his/her last known address, provide a copy of the record that is disclosed,
and give the parent/guardian or adult student an opportunity for a hearing to challenge the
record. (34 CFR 99.34)

The Student Aid Commission, to provide the grade point average (GPA) of all district
students in grade 12 and, when requested, verification of high school graduation or its
equivalent of all students who graduated in the prior academic year, for use in the Cal
Grant postsecondary financial aid program. However, such information shall not be
submitted when students opt out or are permitted by the rules of the Student Aid
Commission to provide test scores in lieu of the GPA. (Education Code 69432.9,
69432.92)

No later than October 15 each year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify each
student in grade 12, and his/her parents/guardians if the student is under age 18 years,



AR 5125(€)

STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

10.

11.

12.

that the student's GPA will be forwarded to the Student Aid Commission unless he/she

opts out within a period of time specified in the notice, which shall not be less than 30
days. (Education Code 69432.9)

Students' social security numbers shall not be included in the submitted information
unless the Student Aid Commission deems it necessary to complete the financial aid
application and the Superintendent or designee obtains permission from the student's
parent/guardian, or from the adult student, to submit the social security number.
(Education Code 69432.9)

Federal, state, and local officials, as needed for an audit, evaluation, or compliance
activity related to a state or federally funded education program and in accordance with a
written agreement developed pursuant to 34 CFR 99.35 (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR
99.3, 99.31, 99.35)

Any county placing agency acting as an authorized representative of a state or local
cducational agency which is required to audit or evaluate a state or federally supported
education program pursuant to item #7 above (Education Code 49076)

Any person, agency, or organization authorized in compliance with a court order or
lawfully issued subpoena (Education Code 49077; 5 CCR 435; 34 CFR 99.31)

Unless otherwise instructed by the court, the Superintendent or designee shall, prior to
disclosing a record pursuant to a court order or subpoena, give the parent/guardian or
adult student at least three days' notice of the name of the requesting agency and the
specific record requested, if lawfully possible within the requirements of the judicial
order. (Education Code 49077; 5 CCR 435, 34 CFR 99.31)

Any district attorney who is participating in or conducting a truancy mediation program
or participating in the presentation of evidence in a truancy petition (Education Code
49076)

A district attorney's office for consideration against a parent/guardian for failure to
comply with compulsory education laws (Education Code 49076)

Any probation officer, district attorney, or counsel of record for a minor student for the
purposes of conducting a criminal investigation or an investigation in regards to declaring
the minor student a ward of the court or involving a violation of a condition of probation,
subject to evidentiary rules specified in Welfare and Institutions Code 701 (Education
Code 49076)



AR 5125(f)

STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

13;

14.

When disclosing records for these purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain
written certification from the recipient of the records that the information will not be
disclosed to another party without prior written consent of the student's parent/guardian
or the holder of the student's educational rights, unless specifically authorized by state or
federal law. (Education Code 49076)

Any judge or probation officer for the purpose of conducting a truancy mediation
program for a student or for the purpose of presenting evidence in a truancy petition
pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 681 (Education Code 49076)

In such cases, the judge or probation officer shall certify in writing to the Superintendent
or designee that the information will be used only for truancy purposes. Upon releasing
student information to a judge or probation officer, the Superintendent or designee shall
inform, or provide written notification to, the student's parent/guardian within 24 hours.
(Education Code 49076)

A foster family agency with jurisdiction over a currently enrolled or former student;
short-term residential treatment program staff responsible for the education or case
management of a student; or a caregiver who has direct responsibility for the care of a
student, including a certified or licensed foster parent, an approved relative or nonrelated
extended family member, or a resource family, as defined (Education Code 49076)

Such individuals shall have access to the student's current or most recent records of
grades, transcripts, attendance, discipline, online communication on platforms established
by schools for students and parents/guardians, and any individualized education program
or Section 504 plan developed and maintained by the district (Education Code 49069.3)

(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

15.

A student age 14 years or older who is both a homeless student and an unaccompanied
minor as defined in 42 USC 11434a (Education Code 49076)

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)

16.

An individual who completes items #1-4 of the caregiver's authorization affidavit
pursuant to Family Code 6552 and signs the affidavit for the purpose of enrolling a minor
in school (Education Code 49076)



AR 5125(g)

STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

L

18.

19;

A caseworker or other representative of a state or local child welfare agency or tribal
organization that has legal responsibility for the care and protection of a student, provided
that the information is directly related to providing assistance to address the student's
educational needs (Education Code 49076; 20 USC 1232(g))

Appropriate law enforcement authorities, in circumstances where Education Code 48902
requires that the district provide special education and disciplinary records of a student
with disabilities who is suspended or expelled for committing an act violating Penal Code
245 (Education Code 48902, 49076)

When disclosing such records, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain written
certification by the recipient of the records as described in item #12 above. (Education
Code 49076)

Designated peace officers or law enforcement agencies in cases where the district is
authorized by law to assist law enforcement in investigations of suspected criminal
conduct or kidnapping and a written parental consent, lawfully issued subpoena, or court
order is submitted to the district, or information is provided to it indicating that an
emergency exists in which the student's information is necessary to protect the health or
safety of the student or other individuals (Education Code 49076.5; 34 CFR 99.1-99.67)

In such cases, the Superintendent or designee shall provide information about the identity
and location of the student as it relates to the transfer of that student's records to another
public school district or California private school. (Education Code 49076.5)

When disclosing records for the above purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain the
necessary documentation to verify that the person, agency, or organization is a person, agency, or
organization that is permitted to receive such records.

Any person, agency, or organization granted access is prohibited from releasing information to
another person, agency, or organization without written permission from the parent/guardian or
adult student unless specifically allowed by state law or the federal Family Educational Rights
and Privacy Act. (Education Code 49076)

In addition, the parent/guardian or adult student may provide written consent for access to be
granted to persons, agencies, or organizations not afforded access rights by law. The written
consent shall specify the records to be released and the party or parties to whom they may be
released. (Education Code 49075)



AR 5125(h)

STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

Only a parent/guardian having legal custody of the student may consent to the release of records
to others. Either parent/guardian may grant consent if both parents/guardians notify the district,
in writing, that such an agreement has been made. (Education Code 49061)

(cf- 5021 - Noncustodial Parents)

Discretionary Access

At his/her discretion, the Superintendent or designee may release information from a student's
records to the following:

I

Appropriate persons, including parents/guardians of a student, in an emergency if the
health and safety of the student or other persons are at stake (Education Code 49076; 34
CFR 99.31, 99.32, 99.36)

When releasing information to any such appropriate person, the Superintendent or
designee shall record information about the threat to the health or safety of the student or
any other person that formed the basis for the disclosure and the person(s) to whom the
disclosure was made. (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.32)

Unless it would further endanger the health or safety of the student or other persons, the
Superintendent or designee shall inform the parent/guardian or adult student within one
week of the disclosure that the disclosure was made, of the articulable and significant
threat to the health or safety of the student or other individuals that formed the basis for
the disclosure, and of the parties to whom the disclosure was made.

Accrediting associations (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

Under the conditions specified in Education Code 49076 and 34 CFR 99.31,
organizations conducting studies on behalf of educational institutions or agencies for the
purpose of developing, validating, or administering predictive tests, administering student
aid programs, or improving instruction, provided that: (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR
99.31)

a. The study is conducted in a manner that does not permit personal identification of
parents/guardians and students by individuals other than representatives of the
organization who have legitimate interests in the information.

b. The information is destroyed when no longer needed for the purposes for which
the study is conducted.



AR 5125(1)
STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

& The district enters into a written agreement with the organization that complies
with 34 CFR 99.31.

4. Officials and employees of private schools or school systems where the student is
enrolled or intends to enroll, subject to the rights of parents/guardians as provided in
Education Code 49068 and in compliance with 34 CFR 99.34 (Education Code 49076;
34 CFR 99.31, 99.34)

S. Local health departments operating countywide or regional immunization information
and reminder systems and the California Department of Public Health, unless the
parent/guardian has requested that no disclosures of this type be made (Health and Safety
Code 120440)

6. Contractors and consultants having a legitimate educational interest based on services or
functions which have been outsourced to them through a formal written agreement or
contract by the district, excluding volunteers or other parties (Education Code 49076)

(cf. 3600 - Consultants)

7. Agencies or organizations in connection with the student's application for or receipt of
financial aid, provided that information permitting the personal identification of a student
or his/her parents/guardians for these purposes is disclosed only as may be necessary to

" determine the eligibility of the student for financial aid, determine the amount of financial
aid, determine the conditions which will be imposed regarding the financial aid, or
enforce the terms or conditions of the financial aid (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR
99.31,99.36)

8. County elections officials for the purpose of identifying students eligible to register to
vote or offering such students an opportunity to register, subject to the provisions of 34
CFR 99.37 and under the condition that any information provided on this basis shall not
be used for any other purpose or transferred to any other person or agency (Education
Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31, 99.37)

(cf- 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)

When disclosing records for the above purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain the
necessary documentation to verify that the person, agency, or organization is a person, agency, or
organization that 1s permitted to receive such records.

De-identification of Records

When authorized by law for any program audit, educational research, or other purposes, the
Superintendent or designee may release information from a student record without prior



AR 5125(j)

STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

consent of the parent/guardian or adult student after the removal of all personally identifiable
information. Prior to releasing such information, the Superintendent or designee shall make a
reasonable determination that the student's identity is not personally identifiable, whether
through single or multiple releases and taking into account other reasonably available
information. (Education Code 49074, 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

Process for Providing Access to Records

Student records shall be maintained in a central file at the school attended by the student or,
when records are maintained at different locations, a notation shall be placed in the central file
indicating where other records may be found. Parents/guardians shall be notified of the location
of student records if not centrally located. (Education Code 49069; 5 CCR 433

The custodian of records shall be responsible for the security of student records and shall ensure
that access is limited to authorized persons. (5 CCR 433)

The custodian of records shall develop reasonable methods, including physical, technological,
and administrative controls, to ensure that school officials and employees obtain access to only
those student records in which they have legitimate educational interests. (34 CFR 99.31)

To inspect, review, or obtain copies of student records, authorized persons shall submit a request
to the custodian of records. Prior to granting the request, the custodian of records shall
authenticate the individual's identity. For any individual granted access based on a legitimate
educational interest, the request shall specify the interest involved.

When required by law, the parent/guardian shall provide written, signed, and dated consent
before the district discloses the student record. Such consent may be given through electronic
means in those cases where it can be authenticated. The district's consent form shall specify the
records that may be disclosed, state the purpose of the disclosure, and identify the party or class
of parties to whom the disclosure may be made. Upon request by the parent/guardian, the district
shall provide him/her a copy of the records disclosed. (34 CFR 99.30)

If the parent/guardian refuses to provide written consent for the release of student information,
the Superintendent or designee shall not release the information, unless it is otherwise subject to
release based on a court order or a lawful subpoena.

Within five business days following the date of request, a parent/guardian or other authorized
person shall be granted access to inspect, review, and obtain copies of student records during
regular school hours. (Education Code 49069)



AR 5125(k)
STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

Qualified certificated personnel shall be available to interpret records when requested.
(Education Code 49069)

The custodian of records or the Superintendent or designee shall prevent the alteration, damage,
or loss of records during inspection. (5 CCR 435)

Access Log

A log shall be maintained for each student's record which lists all persons, agencies, or
organizations requesting or receiving information from the records and the legitimate educational
interest of the requester. (Education Code 49064)

In every instance of inspection by persons who do not have assigned educational responsibility,
the custodian of records shall make an entry in the log indicating the record inspected, the name
of the person granted access, the reason access was granted, and the time and circumstances of
inspection. (5 CCR 435)

The custodian of records shall also make an entry in the log regarding any request for records
that was denied and the reason for the denial.

The log shall include requests for access to records by:

L. Parents/guardians or adult students

2y Students who are 16 years of age or older or who have completed the 10th grade

3 Parties obtaining district-approved directory information

4. Parties who provide written parental consent, in which case the consent notice shall be

filed with the record pursuant to Education Code 49075
5. School officials and employees who have a legitimate educational interest
6. Law enforcement personnel seeking to enforce immigration laws
The log shall be accessible only to the parent/guardian, adult student, dependent adult student,
student who is age 16 years or older or who has completed the 10th grade, custodian of records,
and certain state or federal officials. (Education Code 49064; 5 CCR 432)

Duplication of Student Records

To provide copies of any student record, the district shall charge a reasonable fee not to exceed
the actual cost of providing the copies. No charge shall be made for providing up to



AR 5125(1)
STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

two transcripts or up to two verifications of various records for any former student. No charge
shall be made to locate or retrieve any student record. (Education Code 49065)

(cf- 3260 - Fees and Charges)
Changes to Student Records

Only a parent/guardian having legal custody of a student or an adult student may challenge the
content of a record or offer a written response to a record. (Education Code 49061)

(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records)
No additions except routine updating shall be made to a student's record after high school

graduation or permanent departure without prior consent of the parent/guardian or adult student.
(5 CCR 437)

A student's legal name or gender as entered on the mandatory student record required pursuant to
5 CCR 432 shall only be changed with proper documentation. However, at the written request of
a student or, if appropriate, his/her parents/guardians, the district shall use the student's preferred

name and pronouns consistent with his/her gender identity on all other district-related
documents.

-(¢f- 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)
Retention and Destruction of Student Records

All anecdotal information and assessment reports maintained as student records shall be dated
and signed by the individual who originated the data. (5 CCR 431)

The following mandatory permanent student records shall be kept indefinitely: (5 CCR 432,
437)

1. Legal name of student

2, Date and place of birth and method of verifying birth date

(cf 5111 - Admission)
3. Sex of student
4. Name and address of parent/guardian of minor student

a. Address of minor student if different from the above



AR 5125(m)

STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

b. Annual verification of parent/guardian's name and address and student's residence

(cf- 5111.1 - District Residency)

5. Entrance and departure dates of each school year and for any summer session or other
extra session

6. Subjects taken during each year, half-year, summer session, or quarter, and marks or
credits given

(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement)
% Verification of or exemption from required immunizations
(¢f 5141.31 - Immunizations)

8. Date of high school graduation or equivalent

Mandatory interim student records, unless forwarded to another district, shall be maintained
subject to destruction during the third school year after the school year in which they originated,
following a determination that their usefulness has ceased or the student has left the district.
These records include: (Education Code 48918, 51747; 5 CCR 432, 437, 16027)

L Expulsion orders and the causes therefor

(cf- 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

2. A log identifying persons or agencies who request or receive information from the
student record

3. Health information, including verification or waiver of the health screening for school
entry

(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry)

4, Information on participation in special education programs, including required tests, case
studies, authorizations, and evidence of eligibility for admission or discharge

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(cf: 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)



AR 5125(n)
STUDENT RECORDS (continued)
5, Language training records
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners)

6. Progress slips/notices required by Education Code 49066 and 49067

e Parental restrictions/stipulations regarding access to directory information

8. Parent/guardian or adult student rejoinders to challenged records and to disciplinary
action

9 Parent/guardian authorization or denial of student participation in specific programs

10.  Results of standardized tests administered within the past three years

(cf: 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests)

11. Written findings resulting from an evaluation conducted after a specified number of
missed assignments to determine whether it is in a student's best interest to remain in
independent study

(cf. 6158 - Independent Stud)y)

Permitted student records may be destroyed six months after the student completes or withdraws
from the educational program, including: (5 CCR 432, 437)

L. Objective counselor and/or teacher ratings
Z Standardized test results older than three years
3. Routine disciplinary data

(¢f. 5144 - Discipline)

4. Verified reports of relevant behavioral patterns
S. All disciplinary notices

6. Supplementary attendance records

Records shall be destroyed in a way that assures they will not be available to possible public
inspection in the process of destruction. (5 CCR 437)



AR 5125(0)
STUDENT RECORDS (continued)
Transfer of Student Records

When a student transfers into this district from any other school district or a private school, the
Superintendent or designee shall inform the student's parent/guardian of his/her rights regarding
student records, including the right to review, challenge, and receive a copy of student records.
(Education Code 49068; 5 CCR 438)

When a student transfers into this district from another district, the Superintendent or designee
shall request that the student's previous district provide any records, either maintained by that
district in the ordinary course of business or received from a law enforcement agency, regarding
acts committed by the transferring student that resulted in his/her suspension or expulsion.
(Education Code 48201)

(cf 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security)
(cf: 5119 - Students Expelled From Other Districts)

When a student transfers from this district to another school district or to a private school, the
Superintendent or designee shall forward a copy of the student's mandatory permanent record
within 10 school days of the district's receipt of the request for the student's records. The original
record or a copy shall be retained permanently by this district. If the transfer is to another
California public school, the student's entire mandatory interim record shall also be forwarded.
If the transfer is out of state or to a private school, the mandatory interim record may be
forwarded. Permitted student records may be forwarded to any other district or private school.
(Education Code 48918, 49068; 5 CCR 438)

Upon receiving a request from a county placing agency to transfer a student in foster care out of
a district school, the Superintendent or designee shall transfer the student's records to the next
educational placement within two business days. (Education Code 49069.5)

All student records shall be updated before they are transferred. (5 CCR 438)

Student records shall not be withheld from the requesting district because of any charges or fees
owed by the student or parent/guardian. (5 CCR 438)

If the district 1s withholding grades, diploma, or transcripts from the student because of his/her
damage or loss of school property, this information shall be sent to the requesting district along
with the student's records.

(cf. 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts)

Notification of Parents/Guardians
Upon any student's initial enrollment, and at the beginning of each school year thereafter, the
Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians and eligible students, in writing, of



AR 5125(p)

STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

their rights related to student records. If 15 percent or more of the students enrolled in the
district speak a single primary language other than English, then the district shall provide these
notices in that language. Otherwise, the district shall provide these notices in the student's home
language insofar as practicable. The district shall effectively notify parents/guardians or eligible
students with disabilities. (Education Code 49063, 48985; 34 CFR 99.7)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

The notice shall include: (Education Code 49063; 34 CFR 99.7, 99.34)

L.

2

10.

LiLs

The types of student records kept by the district and the information contained therein
The title(s) of the official(s) responsible for maintaining each type of record
The location of the log identifying those who request information from the records

District criteria for defining school officials and employees and for determining
legitimate educational interest

District policies for reviewing and expunging student records

The right to inspect and review student records and the procedures for doing so

The right to challenge and the procedures for challenging the content of a student record
that the parent/guardian or student believes to be inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in
violation of the student's privacy rights

The cost, if any, charged for duplicating copies of records

The categories of information defined as directory information pursuant to Education
Code 49073

The right to consent to disclosures of personally identifiable information contained in the
student's records except when disclosure without consent is authorized by law

Availability of the curriculum prospectus developed pursuant to Education Code
49091.14 containing the titles, descriptions, and instructional aims of every course
offered by the school

(cf- 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)



AR 5125(q)

STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

12.

13.

Any other rights and requirements set forth in Education Code 49060-49078, and the
right of parents/guardians to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education
concerning an alleged failure by the district to comply with 20 USC 1232¢g

A statement that the district forwards education records to other agencies or institutions
that request the records and in which the student seeks or intends to enroll or is already
enrolled as long as the disclosure is for purposes related to the student's enrollment

In addition, the annual parental notification shall include a statement that a student's citizenship
status, immigration status, place of birth, or any other information indicating national origin will
not be released without parental consent or a court order.

Student Records from Social Media

For the purpose of gathering and maintaining records of students' social media activity, the
Superintendent or designee shall: (Education Code 49073.6)

L,

Gather or maintain only information that pertains directly to school safety or student
safety

Provide a student with access to any information that the district obtained from his/her
social media activity and an opportunity to correct or delete such information

Destroy information gathered from social media and maintained in student records within
one year after a student turns 18 years of age or within one year after the student is no
longer enrolled in the district, whichever occurs first

Notify each parent/guardian that the student's information is being gathered from social
media and that any information maintained in the student's records shall be destroyed as
provided in item #3 above. The notification shall also include, but is not limited to, an
explanation of the process by which a student or his/her parent/guardian may access the
student's records for examination of the information gathered or maintained and the
process by which removal of the information may be requested or corrections to the
information may be made. The notification may be provided as part of the annual
parental notification required pursuant to Education Code 48980.

If the district contracts with a third party to gather information on a student from social
media, ensure that the contract;



AR 5125(r)

STUDENT RECORDS (continued)

Regulation
approved:

Prohibits the third party from using the information for purposes other than those
specified in the contract or from selling or sharing the information with any
person or entity other than the district, the student, or his/her parent/guardian

Requires the third party to destroy the information immediately upon satisfying
the terms of the contract, or when the district notifies the third party that the
student has turned 18 years of age or is no longer enrolled in the district,
whichever occurs first

CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
May 2018



Students AR 5125.1(a)
RELEASE OF DIRECTORY INFORMATION

Definition

Directory information means information contained in a student record that would not generally

be considered harmful or an invasion of privacy if disclosed. Such student information includes:
(Education Code 49061; 20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.3)

1. Name
2. Address
3. Telephone number

4, Email address
5. Date of birth

6. Major field of study

T Participation record in officially recognized activities and sports
8. Weight and height of athletic team members

g Dates of attendance

10. Degrees and awards received

11.  Most recent previous school attended

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)

Directory information does not include a student's social security number or student
identification number. However, for purposes of accessing or communicating in electronic
systems, directory information may include a student identification number, user identification,
or other personal identifier used by the student provided that the identifier cannot be used to gain
access to education records except when used in conjunction with a personal identification
number, password, or other factor known or possessed only by the authorized user. (34 CFR
99.3)

Directory information also does not include a student's citizenship status, immigration status,
place of birth, or any other information indicating national origin.



AR 5125.1(b)
RELEASE OF DIRECTORY INFORMATION (continued)
Notification to Parents/Guardians

At the beginning of each school year, all parents/guardians shall be notified as to the categories
of directory information the district plans to release and the recipients of the information. The
notification shall also inform parents/guardians of their right to refuse to let the district designate
any or all types of information as directory information, how to refuse release, and the period of
time within which a parent/guardian must notify the district in writing that he/she does not want
a certain category of information designated as directory information. (Education Code 49063,
49073; 20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.37)

(cf 5125 - Student Records)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

In addition, the annual parental notification shall include a statement that directory information
does not include citizenship status, immigration status, place of birth, or any other information
indicating national origin and that the district will not release such information without parental
consent or a court order.

(cf. 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians that they may request that the
district not release the name, address, and telephone number of their child to military recruiters,
employers, or institutiens of higher education without prior written consent. (20 USC 7908)

Parent/Guardian Consent

No directory information of a student identified as a homeless child or youth as defined in 42
USC 11434a shall be released, unless the parent/guardian, or the student if he/she is 18 years or
older, has provided written consent that directory information may be released. For any other
student, directory information shall not be released if his/her parent/guardian notifies the district
in writing that such information not be disclosed without the parent/guardian's prior consent.
(Education Code 49073; 20 USC 1232g, 7908)

(cf 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information)
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information)

For a former student, the district shall continue to honor any valid request to opt out of the
disclosure of directory information made while the student was in attendance at the district,
unless the opt-out request has been rescinded. (34 CFR 99.37)

Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
approved: May 2018



Students E 5125.1(a)

RELEASE OF DIRECTORY INFORMATION

PARENT/GUARDIAN NOTICE
RELEASE OF DIRECTORY INFORMATION

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), a federal law, requires that

(district name) , with certain exceptions, obtain your written consent
prior to the disclosure of personally identifiable information from your child's education records.
However, the district may disclose appropriately designated "directory information" without
written consent, unless you have advised the district to the contrary in accordance with district
procedures. The primary purpose of directory information is to allow the district to include this
type of information from your child's education records in certain school and/or district
publications. Examples include:

. a playbill, showing your child's role in a drama production

. the annual yearbook

. honor roll or other recognition lists

. graduation programs

. sports activity sheets, such as for wrestling, showing weight and height of team members

Directory information, which is information that is generally not considered harmful or an
invasion of privacy if released, can also be disclosed to outside organizations without a
parent/guardian's prior written consent. Outside organizations include, but are not limited to,
companies that manufacture class rings or publish yearbooks. In addition, two federal laws
require districts receiving assistance under the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965
(ESEA), as amended, to provide military recruiters, upon request, with students' names,
addresses, and telephone listings, unless parents/guardians have advised the district that they do
not want their child's information disclosed without their prior written consent.

If you do not want the district to disclose directory information from your child's education

records without your prior written consent, you must notify the district in writing by (insert
date) . The district has designated the following information as directory
information:

L. Name

2 Address

3. Telephone number

4. Email address

5 Date of birth



E 5125.1(b)

RELEASE OF DIRECTORY INFORMATION (continued)

6. Major field of study

7. Participation in officially recognized activities and sports
8. Weight and height of athletic team members

9 Dates of attendance

10. Degrees and awards received

11. Most recent previous school attended

The district also may disclose your child's student identification number, user identification, or
other unique personal identifier used to communicate in electronic systems, provided it cannot be
used to access education records without a personal identification number (PIN), password, or
other factor that only the authorized user knows. Your child's social security number will not be
used for this purpose.

Directory information does not include your child's citizenship status, immigration status, place
of birth, or any other information indicating national origin. The district will not disclose such
information without your consent or a court order.

Exhibit CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
version: May 2018



Students BP 5131.2(a)
BULLYING

The Governing Board recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on student learning and school
attendance and desires to provide a safe school environment that protects students from physical
and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall
not tolerate bullying of any student.

No individual or group shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually
harass, threaten, intimidate, retaliate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence
against any student or school personnel.

(cf- 5131 - Conduct)

(cf 5136 - Gangs)

(¢f. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)
(cf- 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)

Cyberbullying includes the electronic creation or transmission of harassing communications,
direct threats, or other harmful texts, sounds, or images as defined in Education Code 48900.
Cyberbullying also includes breaking into another person's electronic account and assuming that
person's identity in order to damage that person's reputation.

(¢f 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression)
(cf- 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology)

Strategies for addressing bullying in district schools shall be developed with involvement of key
stakeholders, including students, parents/guardians, and staff, and may be incorporated into the
comprehensive safety plan, the local control and accountability plan, and other applicable district
and school plans.

(cf- 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)

(cf 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)
(¢f. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

(cf- 6020 - Parent Involvement)

As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee may collaborate with law enforcement, courts,
social services, mental health services, other agencies, and community organizations in the
development and implementation of joint strategies to promote safety in schools and the
community and to provide services for alleged victims and perpetrators of bullying.

(cf 1020 - Youth Services)
Bullying Prevention

To the extent possible, district schools shall focus on the prevention of bullying by establishing
clear rules for student conduct and implementing strategies to promote a



BP 5131.2(b)
BULLYING (continued)

positive, collaborative school climate. Students shall be informed, through student handbooks
and other appropriate means, of district and school rules related to bullying, mechanisms
available for reporting incidents or threats, and the consequences for engaging in bullying.

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)

As appropriate, the district shall provide students with instruction, in the classroom or other
educational settings, that promotes social-emotional learning, effective communication and
conflict resolution skills, character/values education, respect for cultural and individual
differences, self-esteem development, assertiveness skills, and appropriate online behavior.

(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)
(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction)

Such instruction shall also educate students about the negative impact of bullying,
discrimination, intimidation, and harassment based on actual or perceived immigration status,
religious beliefs and customs, or any other individual bias or prejudice.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to teachers and other school staff to raise
their awareness about the legal obligation of the district and its employees to prevent
discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying of district students. Such training shall be
designed to provide staff with the skills to:

L. Discuss the diversity of the student body and school community, including their varying
immigration experiences

2. Discuss bullying prevention strategies with students, and teach students to recognize the
behavior and characteristics of bullying perpetrators and victims

3. [dentify the signs of bullying or harassing behavior
4. Take immediate corrective action when bullying is observed
S. Report incidents to the appropriate authorities, including law enforcement in instances of

criminal behavior

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

Based on an assessment of bullying incidents at school, the Superintendent or designee may
increase supervision and security in areas where bullying most often occurs, such as classrooms,
playgrounds, hallways, restrooms, and cafeterias.



BP 5131.2(c)

BULLYING (continued)

Intervention

Students are encouraged to notify school staff when they are being bullied or suspect that another
student is being victimized. In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall develop means for
students to report threats or incidents confidentially and anonymously.

School staff who witness an act of bullying shall immediately intervene to stop the incident when
it is safe to do so. (Education Code 234.1)

When appropriate based on the severity or pervasiveness of the bullying, the Superintendent or
designee shall notify the parents/guardians of victims and perpetrators and may contact law
enforcement.

The Superintendent, principal, or principal's designee may refer a victim, witness, perpetrator, or
other student affected by an act of bullying to a school counselor, school psychologist, social
worker, child welfare attendance personnel, school nurse, or other school support service
personnel for case management, counseling, and/or participation in a restorative justice program
as appropriate. (Education Code 48900.9)

(cf 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)
Reporting and Filing of Complaints

Any student, parent/guardian, or other individual who believes that a student has been subjected
to bullying or who has witnessed bullying may report the incident to a teacher, the principal, a
compliance officer, or any other available school employee. Within one business day of
receiving such a report, a staff member shall notify the principal of the report, whether or not a
uniform complaint is filed. In addition, any school employece who observes an incident of
bullying involving a student shall, within one business day, report his/her observation to the
principal or a district compliance officer, whether or not the alleged victim files a complaint.

Within two business days of receiving a report of bullying, the principal shall notify the district
compliance officer identified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

When the circumstances involve cyberbullying, individuals with information about the activity
shall be encouraged to save and print any electronic or digital messages that they feel constitute
cyberbullying and to notify a teacher, the principal, or other employee so that the matter may be
investigated. When a student uses a social networking site or service to bully



BP 5131.2(d)

BULLYING (continued)

or harass another student, the Superintendent or designee may file a request with the networking
site or service to suspend the privileges of the student and to have the material removed.

When a report of bullying is submitted, the principal or a district compliance officer shall inform
the student or parent/guardian of the right to file a formal written complaint in accordance with
AR 1312.3. The student who is the alleged victim of the bullying shall be given an opportunity to
describe the incident, identify witnesses who may have relevant information, and provide other
evidence of bullying.

Investigation and Resolution of Complaints

Any complaint of bullying shall be investigated and, if determined to be discriminatory, resolved
in accordance with law and the district's uniform complaint procedures specified in AR 1312.3,

If, during the investigation, it is determined that a complaint is about nondiscriminatory bullying,
the principal or designee shall inform the complainant and shall take all necessary actions to
resolve the complaint.

Discipline

Corrective actions for a student who commits an act of bullying of any type may include counseling,
behavioral intervention and education, and, if the behavior is severe or pervasive as defined in
Education Code 48900, may include suspension or expulsion in accordance with district policies
and regulations.

(cf- 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

(cf- 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))
(cf- 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students)

Any employee who permits or engages in bullying or retaliation related to bullying shall be
subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)
(cf- 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

Legal Reference: (see next page)



BF:5131.2(c)
BULLYING (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination
32282 Comprehensive safety plan
32283.5 Bullying; online training
35181 Governing board policy on responsibilities of students
35291-35291.5 Rules
48900-48925 Suspension or expulsion
48985 Translation of notices
52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan
PENAL CODE
422.55 Definition of hate crime
647 Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy, misdemeanor
647.7 Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; punishment
653.2 Electronic communication devices, threats to safety
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
4600-4687 Uniform complaint procedures
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 47
254 Universal service discounts (e-rate)
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28
35.107 Nondiscrimination on basis of disabilitv; complaints
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
104.7 Designation of responsible employee for Section 504
106.8 Designation of responsible employee for Title LX
110.25 Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age
COURT DECISIONS
Wynar v. Douglas County School District, (2013) 728 F.3d 1062
J.C. v. Beverly Hills Unified School District, (2010) 711 F.Supp.2d 1094
Lavine v. Blaine School District, (2002) 279 F.3d 719

Management Resouices:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Final Guidance: AB 1266, Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students, Privacy, Programs,

Activities & Facilities, Legal Guidance, March 2014
Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming

Students, Policy Brief, February 2014

Addressing the Conditions of Children: Focus on Bullving, Governance Brief, December 2012

Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011

Building Healthy Communities: A School Leaders Guide to Collaboration and Community Engagement,
2009

Cyberbullving: Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, July 2007

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

California's Social and Emotional Learning: Guiding Principles, 2018

Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools: Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve,
2008

Bullying at School, 2003

CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS

Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to Assist
California K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018

Management Resources continued: (see next page)



BP 5131.2(f)

BULLYING (continued)

Management Resources: (continued)

Policy

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS

Guidance to Schools: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, October 2014

Dear Colleague Letter: Bullving of Students with Disabilities, August 2013

Dear Colleague Letter. Guidance on Schools' Obligations to Protect Students from Student-on-Student

Harassment on the Basis of Sex; Race, Color and National Origin; and Disabilitv, October 26, 2010
Dear Colleague Letter. Harassment and Bullying, October 2010

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Department of Education, Safe Schools Office: hitp.://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss
California Office of the Attorney General: hitp://oag.ca.gov

Center on Great Teachers and Leaders: htips://gticenter.org

Collaborative for Academic Social and Emotional Learning: hitps://casel.org
Common Sense Media: http://www.commonsensemedia.org

National School Safety Center: hitp://www.schoolsafety.us

Partnership for Children and Youth: htips://www.partnerforchildren.org

U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov

CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE

adopted: May 2018



Students BP 5145.13(a)

RESPONSE TO IMMIGRATION ENFORCEMENT

The Governing Board is committed to the success of all students and believes that every school
site should be a safe and welcoming place for all students and their families irrespective of their
citizenship or immigration status.

District staff shall not solicit or collect information or documents regarding the citizenship or
immigration status of students or their family members or provide assistance with immigration
enforcement at district schools, except as may be required by state and federal law. (Education
Code 234.7)

(cf. 5111 - Admission)
(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency)

No student shall be denied equal rights and opportunities nor be subjected to unlawful
discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying in the district's programs and activities on
the basis of his/her immigration status. (Education Code 200, 220, 234.1)

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf 5131.2 - Bullying)

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

(cf- 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians regarding their children's right to a
free public education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs and their rights related
to immigration enforcement. (Education Code 234.7)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

Consistent with requirements of the California Office of the Attorney General, the
Superintendent or designee shall develop procedures for addressing any requests by a law
enforcement officer for access to district records, school sites, or students for the purpose of
immigration enforcement.

(¢f. 1340 - Access to District Records)

(cf. 3580 - District Records)

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information)

Teachers, school administrators, and other school staff shall receive training regarding
immigration issues, including information on responding to a request from an immigration
officer to visit a school site or to have access to a student.

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)



BP 5145.13(b)

RESPONSE TO IMMIGRATION ENFORCEMENT (continued)

The Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board in a timely manner any requests for
information or access to a school site by an officer or employee of a law enforcement agency for
the purpose of enforcing the immigration laws. Such notification shall be provided in a manner

that ensures the confidentiality and privacy of any potentially identifying information.
(Education Code 234.7)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
200 Educational equity
220 Prohibition of discrimination
234.1 Safe Place to Learn Act
234.7 Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status
48204.4 Evidence of residency for school enrollment
48980 Parental notifications
48985 Notices to parents in language other than English
GOVERNMENT CODE
8310.3 California Religious Freedom Act
PENAL CODE
422.55 Definition of hate crime
627.1-627.6 Access to school premises, outsiders
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
COURT DECISIONS
Plyler v. Doe, 457 U.S. 202 (1982)

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of Immigration Status,
February 2017
CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS
Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All: Guidance and Model Policies to Assist
California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018
WEB SITES
CSBA: hup:/iwww.esba.org
California Office of the Attorney General: hitp.//oag.ca.gov
California Department of Education: htip://www.cde.ca.gov
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing: http.//www.dfeh.ca.gov
California Department of Justice: http://www.justice.gov
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: htip:/iwww.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement: hitps://www.ice.gov
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Online Detainee Locator Syvstem: https:/locator.ice.gov/odls

Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
adopted: May 2018



Students AR 5145.13(a)
RESPONSE TO IMMIGRATION ENFORCEMENT
Responding to Requests for Information

Unless authorized by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act pursuant to 20 USC 1232g,
student information shall not be disclosed to immigration law enforcement authorities without
parental consent, a court order, or judicial subpoena. The Superintendent or designee shall
annually notify parents/guardians that the district will not release student information to third
parties for immigration enforcement purposes, unless the parent/guardian consents or as required
to do so by a court order or judicial subpoena.

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)

(cf. 3580 - District Records)

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directorv Information)

Upon receiving any verbal or written request for information related to a student's or family's
immigration or citizenship status, district staff shall:

1. Notify the Superintendent or designee about the information request

2. Provide students and families with appropriate notice and a description of the
immigration officer's request

3. Document any request for information by immigration authorities

4. Provide students and parents/guardians with any documents provided by the immigration
enforcement officer, unless such disclosure is prohibited by a subpoena served on the
district or in cases involving investigations of child abuse, neglect, or dependency

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting)

Resources and data collected by the district shall not be used, directly or by others, to compile a
list, registry, or database of individuals based on national origin, immigration status, religion, or
other category of individual characteristics protected against unlawful discrimination.
(Government Code 8310.3)

Responding to Requests for Access to Students or School Grounds

District staff shall receive parent/guardian consent before a student is interviewed or searched by
any officer seeking to enforce civil immigration laws at the school, unless the officer presents a
valid, effective warrant signed by a judge or a valid, effective court order. A student's
parent/guardian shall be immediately notified if a law enforcement officer requests or gains
access to the student for immigration enforcement purposes, unless the judicial warrant or
subpoena restricts disclosure to the parent/guardian.



AR 5145.13(b)

RESPONSE TO IMMIGRATION ENFORCEMENT (continued)

(cf. 5145.12 - Search and Seizure)

All visitors and outsiders, including immigration enforcement officers, shall register with the
principal or designee upon entering school grounds during school hours. Each visitor or outsider
shall provide the principal or designee with his/her name, address, occupation, age if less than
21, purpose in entering school grounds, proof of identity, and any other information required by
law. (Penal Code 627.2, 627.3)

(¢f- 1250 - Visitors/Outsiders)

District staff shall report the presence of any immigration enforcement officers to on-site district
police and other appropriate administrators.

(¢f- 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department)

As early as possible, district staff shall notify the Superintendent or designee of any request by
an immigration enforcement officer for access to the school or a student or for review of school
documents, including service of lawful subpoenas, petitions, complaints, warrants, or other such
documents.

In addition, district staff shall take the following actions in response to an officer present on the
school campus specifically for immigration enforcement purposes:

L. Advise the officer that before school personnel can respond to the officer's request, they
must first receive notification and direction from the Superintendent or designee, except
under exigent circumstances that necessitate immediate action

2 Request to see the officer's credentials, including his/her name and badge number, and
the phone number of the officer's supervisor, and note or make a copy of all such
information

3. Ask the officer for his/her reason for being on school grounds and document the response

4. Request that the officer produce any documentation that authorizes his/her school access

5. Make a copy of all documents produced by the officer and retain one copy for school
records

6. If the officer declares that exigent circumstances exist and demands immediate access to

the campus, comply with the officer's orders and immediately contact the Superintendent
or designee



AR 5145.13(c)

RESPONSE TO IMMIGRATION ENFORCEMENT (continued)

s If the officer does not declare that exigent circumstances exist, respond according to the
requirements of the officer's documentation, as follows:

If the officer has an Immigrations and Customs Enforcement (ICE) administrative
warrant, district staff shall inform the agent that they cannot consent to any
request without first consulting with the district's legal counsel or other designated
district official.

[f the officer has a federal judicial warrant, such as a search and seizure warrant or
an arrest warrant signed by a federal judge or magistrate, district staff shall
promptly comply with the warrant. If feasible, district staff shall consult with the
district's legal counsel or designated administrator before providing the officer
with access to the person or materials specified in the warrant.

If the officer has a subpoena for production of documents or other evidence,
district staff shall inform the district's legal counsel or other designated official of
the subpoena and await further instructions as to how to proceed.

8. Do not attempt to physically impede the officer, even if the officer appears to be
exceeding the authorization given under a warrant or other document. If an officer enters
the premises without consent, district staff shall document the officer's actions while on
campus.

0. After the encounter with the officer, promptly make written notes of all interactions with
the officer, including:

A list or copy of the officer's credentials and contact information

The identity of all school personnel who communicated with the officer

Details of the officer's request

Whether the officer presented a warrant or subpoena to accompany his/her
request, what was requested in the warrant or subpoena, and whether the warrant
or subpoena was signed by a judge

District staff's response to the officer's request

Any further action taken by the officer

A photo or copy of any documents presented by the officer



AR 5145.13(d)

RESPONSE TO IMMIGRATION ENFORCEMENT (continued)

10. Provide a copy of these notes and associated documents collected from the officer to the
district's legal counsel or other designated district official

The district's legal counsel or other designated official shall submit a timely report to the
Governing Board regarding the officer's requests and actions and the district's responses.
(Education Code 234.7)

The Superintendent or designee shall also email the Bureau of Children's Justice in the California
Department of Justice (BCJ@doj.ca.gov) regarding any attempt by a law enforcement officer to
access a school site or a student for immigration enforcement purposes.

Responding to the Detention or Deportation of Student's Family Member

The Superintendent or designee shall encourage students and their families to update their
emergency contact information as needed throughout the school year and to provide alternative
contacts, including an identified trusted adult guardian, in case a student's parent/guardian is
detained or is otherwise unavailable. The Superintendent or designee shall notify students'
families that information provided on the emergency cards will only be used in response to
specific emergency situations and not for any other purpose.

(¢f. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies)

The Superintendent or designee shall also encourage all students and families to learn their
emergency phone numbers and be aware of the location of important documentation, including
birth certificates, passports, social security cards, physicians' contact information, medication
lists, lists of allergies, and other such information that would allow the students and families to
be prepared in the event that a family member is detained or deported.

In the event that a student's parent/guardian is detained or deported by federal immigration
authorities, the Superintendent or designee shall release the student to the person(s) designated in
the student's emergency contact information or to any individual who presents a caregiver's
authorization affidavit on behalf of the student. The Superintendent or designee shall only
contact child protective services if district personnel are unable to arrange for the timely care of
the student by the person(s) designated in the emergency contact information maintained by the
school or identified on a caregiver's authorization affidavit.

The Superintendent or designee shall notify a student whose parent/guardian was detained or
deported that the student continues to meet the residency requirements for attendance in a district
school, provided that the parent/guardian was a resident of California and the student lived in
California immediately before he/she moved out of state as a result of the parent/guardian's
departure. (Education Code 48204.4)



AR 5145.13(e)

RESPONSE TO IMMIGRATION ENFORCEMENT (continued)

(cf- 5111.1 - District Residency)

The Superintendent or designee may refer a student or his/her family members to other resources
for assistance, including, but not limited to, an ICE detainee locator, legal assistance, or the
consulate or embassy of the parent/guardian's country of origin.

Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
approved: May 2018



Students BP 5145.3(a)

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT

The Governing Board desires to provide a safe school environment that allows all students equal
access and opportunities in the district's academic, extracurricular, and other educational support
programs, services, and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity,
unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying,
targeted at any student by anyone, based on the student's actual or perceived race, color,
ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnic group identification, ethnicity,
age, religion, marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual
orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information, or association
with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 5131 - Conduct)

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf- 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)

(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)

(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

This policy shall apply to all acts related to school activity or to school attendance occurring
within a district school, and to acts which occur off campus or outside of school-related or
school-sponsored activities but which may have an impact or create a hostile environment at
school.

Unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, may
result from physical, verbal, nonverbal, or written conduct based on any of the categories listed
above. Unlawful discrimination also includes the creation of a hostile environment through
prohibited conduct that is so severe, persistent, or pervasive that it affects a student's ability to
participate in or benefit from an educational program or activity; creates an intimidating,
threatening, hostile, or offensive educational environment; has the effect of substantially or
unreasonably interfering with a student's academic performance; or otherwise adversely affects a
student's educational opportunities.

Unlawful discrimination also includes disparate treatment of students based on one of the
categories above with respect to the provision of opportunities to participate in school programs
or activities or the provision or receipt of educational benefits or services.

The Board also prohibits any form of retaliation against any individual who reports or
participates in the reporting of unlawful discrimination, files or participates in the filing of a
complaint, or investigates or participates in the investigation of a complaint or report alleging
unlawful discrimination. Retaliation complaints shall be investigated and resolved in the same
manner as a discrimination complaint.



BP 5145.3(b)
NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT (continued)

The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate students' access to the educational program by
publicizing the district's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures to students,
parents/guardians, and employees. He/she shall provide training and information on the scope
and use of the policy and complaint procedures and take other measures designed to increase the
school community's understanding of the requirements of law related to discrimination. The
Superintendent or designee shall regularly review the implementation of the district's
nondiscrimination policies and practices and, as necessary, shall take action to remove any
identified barrier to student access to or participation in the district's educational program.
He/she shall report his/her findings and recommendations to the Board after each review.

(cf: 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf: 1330 - Use of Facilities)

(cf- 4131 - Staff Development)

(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

(cf- 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)
(cf- 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

Regardless of whether a complainant complies with the writing, timeline, and/or other formal
filing requirements, all complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying, shall be investigated and prompt action taken to stop the
discrimination, prevent recurrence, and address any continuing effect on students.

Students who engage in unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, in violation of law, Board policy, or administrative
regulation shall be subject to appropriate consequence or discipline, which may include
suspension or expulsion when the behavior is severe or pervasive as defined in Education Code
48900.4. Any employee who permits or engages in prohibited discrimination, including
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, shall be subject to disciplinary
action, up to and including dismissal.

(cf- 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)

(cf- 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

(cf- 5144 - Discipline)

(cf: 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

(cf- 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))
(cf 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression)

Record-Keeping
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of all reported cases of unlawful

discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, to enable the
district to monitor, address, and prevent repetitive prohibited behavior in district schools.



BP 5145.3(c)

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT (continued)

(cf. 3580 - District Records)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination
48900.3 Suspension or expulsion for act of hate violence
48900.4 Suspension or expulsion for threats or harassment
48904 Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct
48907 Student exercise of free expression
48950 Freedom of speech
48985 Translation of notices
49020-49023 Athletic programs
51500 Prohibited instruction or activity
51501 Prohibited means of instruction
60044 Prohibited instructional materials
CIVIL CODE
1714.1 Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor
GOVERNMENT CODE
11135 Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state
PENAL CODE
422.55 Definition of hate crime
422.6 Crimes, harassiment
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
432 Student record
4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures
4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
1681-1688 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972
12101-12213 Title Il equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29
794 Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
2000d-2000e-17 Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended
2000h-2-2000h-6 Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
6101-6107 Age Discrimination Act of 1975
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28
35.107 Nondiscrimination on basis of disability, complaints
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
99.31 Disclosure of personally identifiable information
100.3 Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin
104.7 Designation of responsible employee for Section 504
106.8 Designation of responsible emplovee for Title IX
106.9 Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex
110.25 Prohibition of discrimination based on age
COURT DECISIONS
Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal App.4th 567
Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003) 324 F.3¢d 1130

Management Resources. (see next page)



BP 5145.3(d)

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT (continued)

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Updated Legal Guidance: Protecting Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students Asainst Sex
Discrimination, July 2016
CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS
Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All: Guidance and Model Policies to Assist
California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018
FIRST AMENDMENT CENTER PUBLICATIONS
Public Schools and Sexual Orientation: A First Amendment Framework for Finding Common Ground,
2006
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016
Dear Colleague Letter: Title IX Coordinators, April 2015
Dear Colleague Letter. Harassment and Bullying, October 2010
Notice of Non-Discrimination, Fact Sheet, August 2010
WEB SITES
CSBA: htip:/iwww.csba.org
California Department of Education: hitp://www.cde.ca.gov
California Safe Schools Coalition: http://www.casafeschools.org
California Office of the Attorney General: hiip://oag.ca.gov
First Amendment Center: http://www. firstamendmentcenter.org
National School Boards Association: http://www.nsha.org
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr

Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
adopted: May 2018



Students AR 5145.3(a)

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT

The district designates the individual(s) identified below as the employee(s) responsible for
coordinating the district's efforts to comply with applicable state and federal civil rights laws,
including Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975,
and to answer inquiries regarding the district's nondiscrimination policies. The individual(s) shall
also serve as the compliance officer(s) specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures
as the responsible employee to handle complaints alleging unlawful discrimination targeting a
student, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, based on the student's
actual or perceived race, color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status, -ethnic
group identification, ethnicity, age, religion, marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical
or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, genetic
information, or any other legally protected status or association with a person or group with one
or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. The coordinator/compliance officer(s) may
be contacted at: (Education Code 234.1; 5 CCR 4621)

(title or position)

(address)

(telephone number)

(email)

(cf 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

Measures to Prevent Discrimination

To prevent unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation,
retaliation, and bullying, of students at district schools or in school activities and to ensure equal
access of all students to the educational program, the Superintendent or designee shall implement
the following measures:

L. Publicize the district's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures,
including the coordinator/compliance officer's contact information, to students,
parents/guardians, employees, volunteers, and the general public by posting them on the
district's web site and other prominent locations and providing easy access to them
through district-supported social media, when available.



AR 5145.3(b)

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT (continued)

Post in a prominent and conspicuous location on the district and school web sites
information regarding Title IX prohibitions against discrimination based on a student's
sex, gender, gender identity, pregnancy, and parental status, including the following:
(Education Code 221.61)

a. The name and contact information of the district's Title IX coordinator, including
the phone number and email address

b. The rights of students and the public and the responsibilities of the district under
Title IX, including a list of rights as specified in Education Code 221.8 and web
links to information about those rights and responsibilities located on the web
sites of the Office for Equal Opportunity and the U.S. Department of Education's
Office for Civil Rights (OCR)

& A description of how to file a complaint of noncompliance with Title IX in
accordance with AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures, which shall
include:

(1) An explanation of the statute of limitations within which a complaint must
be filed after an alleged incident of discrimination has occurred and how a
complaint may be filed beyond the statute of limitations

(2) An explanation of how the complaint will be investigated and how the
complainant may further pursue the complaint, including web links to this
information on the OCR's web site

3) A web link to the OCR complaints form and the contact information for
the office, including the phone number and email address for the office

(¢f- 1113 - District and School Web Sites)
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)

3.

Provide to students a handbook that contains age-appropriate information that clearly
describes the district's nondiscrimination policy, procedures for filing a complaint, and
resources available to students who feel that they have been the victim of any such
behavior. (Education Code 234.1)

Annually notify all students and parents/guardians of the district's nondiscrimination
policy, including its responsibility to provide a safe, nondiscriminatory school
environment for all students, including transgender and gender-nonconforming students.
The notice shall inform students and parents/guardians that they may



AR 5145.3(c)

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT (continued)

request to meet with the compliance officer to determine how best to accommodate or
resolve concerns that may arise from the district's implementation of its
nondiscrimination policies. The notice shall also inform all students and
parents/guardians that, to the extent possible, the district will address any individual
student's interests and concerns in private.

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

5.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students and parents/guardians,
including those with limited English proficiency, are notified of how to access the
relevant information provided in the district's nondiscrimination policy and related
complaint procedures, notices, and forms in a language they can understand.

If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single
primary language other than English, the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices
concerning nondiscrimination shall be translated into that language in accordance with
Education Code 234.1 and 48985. In all other instances, the district shall ensure
meaningful access to all relevant information for parents/guardians with limited English
proficiency.

Provide to students, employees, volunteers, and parents/guardians age-appropriate
training and information regarding the district's nondiscrimination policy; what
constitutes prohibited discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation,
retaliation, or bullying; how and to whom a report of an incident should be made; and
how to guard against segregating or stereotyping students when providing instruction,
guidance, supervision, or other services to them. Such training and information shall
include details of guidelines the district may use to provide a discrimination-free
environment for all district students, including transgender and gender-nonconforming
students.

(cf- 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)
(¢f. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

8

At the beginning of each school year, inform school employees that any employee who
witnesses any act of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying, against a student is required to intervene if it is safe to do so.
(Education Code 234.1)

At the beginning of each school year, inform each principal or designee of the district's
responsibility to provide appropriate assistance or resources to protect students from
threatened or potentially discriminatory behavior and ensure their privacy rights.



AR 5145.3(d)

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT (continued)

Enforcement of District Policy

The Superintendent or designee shall take appropriate actions to reinforce BP 5145.3 -
Nondiscrimination/Harassment. As needed, these actions may include any of the following:

1. Removing vulgar or offending graffiti
(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti)

2 Providing training to students, staff, and parents/guardians about how to recognize
unlawful discrimination, how to report it or file a complaint, and how to respond

3. Disseminating and/or summarizing the district's policy and regulation regarding unlawful
discrimination
4. Consistent with laws regarding the confidentiality of student and personnel records,

communicating to students, parents/guardians, and the community the school's response
plan to unlawful discrimination or harassment

(cf- 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files)
(cf 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information)
(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

5. Taking appropriate disciplinary action against students, employees, and anyone
determined to have engaged in wrongdoing in violation of district policy, including any
student who is found to have filed a complaint of discrimination that he/she knew was not
true

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)

(cf: 5144.1 - Suspension and Fxpulsion/Due Process)

(cf- 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))
(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students)

Process for Initiating and Responding to Complaints

Any student who feels that he/she has been subjected to unlawful discrimination described above
or in district policy is strongly encouraged to immediately contact the compliance officer,
principal, or any other staff member. In addition, any student who observes any such incident is
strongly encouraged to report the incident to the compliance officer or principal, whether or not
the alleged victim files a complaint.



AR 5145.3(e)
NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT (continued)

Any school employee who observes an incident of unlawful discrimination, including
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, or to whom such an incident is
reported shall report the incident to the compliance officer or principal within a school day,
whether or not the alleged victim files a complaint.

Any school employee who witnesses an incident of unlawful discrimination, including
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, shall immediately intervene to
stop the incident when it is safe to do so. (Education Code 234.1)

When a verbal report of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, is made to or received by the principal or compliance
officer, he/she shall make a note of the report and encourage the student or parent/guardian to
file the complaint in writing, pursuant to the provisions in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint
Procedures. Once notified verbally or in writing, the principal or compliance officer shall begin
the investigation and shall implement immediate measures necessary to stop the discrimination
and ensure that all students have access to the educational program and a safe school
environment. Any interim measures adopted to address unlawful discrimination shall, to the
extent possible, not disadvantage the complainant or a student who is the victim of the alleged
unlawful discrimination.

Any report or complaint alleging unlawful discrimination by the principal, compliance officer, or
any other person to whom a report would ordinarily be made or complaint filed shall instead be
made to or filed with the Superintendent or designee who shall determine how the complaint will
be investigated.

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting)

Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students

Gender identity of a student means the student's gender-related identity, appearance, or behavior
as determined from the student's internal sense of his/her gender, whether or not that gender-
related identity, appearance, or behavior is different from that traditionally associated with the
student's physiology or assigned sex at birth.

Gender expression means a student's gender-related appearance and behavior, whether
stereotypically associated with the student's assigned sex at birth. (Education Code 210.7)

Gender transition refers to the process in which a student changes from living and identifying as
the sex assigned to the student at birth to living and identifying as the sex that corresponds to the
student's gender identity.

Gender-nonconforming student means a student whose gender expression differs from
stereotypical expectations.



AR 5145.3(f)
NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT (continued)

Transgender student means a student whose gender identity is different from the gender he/she
was assigned at birth.

Regardless of whether they are sexual in nature, acts of verbal, nonverbal, or physical
aggression, intimidation, or hostility that are based on sex, gender identity, or gender expression,
or that have the purpose or effect of producing a negative impact on the student's academic
performance or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment are
prohibited. Examples of the types of conduct which are prohibited in the district and which may
constitute gender-based harassment include, but are not limited to:

1. Refusing to address a student by a name and the pronouns consistent with his/her gender
identity
2, Disciplining or disparaging a student or excluding him/her from participating in activities

for behavior or appearance that is consistent with his/her gender identity or that does not
conform to stereotypical notions of masculinity or femininity, as applicable

3. Blocking a student's entry to the restroom that corresponds to his/her gender identity

4. Taunting a student because he/she participates in an athletic activity more typically
favored by a student of the other sex

B Revealing a student's transgender status to individuals who do not have a legitimate need
for the information, without the student's consent

6. Use of gender-specific slurs

[ Physical assault of a student motivated by hostility toward him/her because of his/her
gender, gender identity, or gender expression

The district's_uniform complaint procedures (AR 1312.3) shall be used to report and resolve
complaints alleging discrimination against transgender and gender-nonconforming students.

Examples of bases for complaints include, but are not limited to, the above list, as well as
improper rejection by the district of a student's asserted gender identity, denial of access to
facilities that correspond with a student's gender identity, improper disclosure of a student's
transgender status, discriminatory enforcement of a dress code, and other instances of gender-
based harassment.

To ensure that transgender and gender-nonconforming students are afforded the same rights,
benefits, and protections provided to all students by law and Board policy, the district shall
address each situation on a case-by-case basis, in accordance with the following guidelines:



AR 5145.3(g)

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT (continued)

Right to privacy: A student's transgender or gender-nonconforming status is his/her
private information and the district shall only disclose the information to others with the
student's prior written consent, except when the disclosure is otherwise required by law
or when the district has compelling evidence that disclosure is necessary to preserve the
student's physical or mental well-being. In any case, the district shall only allow
disclosure of a student's personally identifiable information to employees with a
legitimate educational interest as determined by the district pursuant to 34 CFR 99.31.
Any district employee to whom a student's transgender or gender-nonconforming status is
disclosed shall keep the student's information confidential. When disclosure of a student's
gender identity is made to a district employee by a student, the employee shall seek the
student's permission to notify the compliance officer. If the student refuses to give
permission, the employee shall keep the student's information confidential, unless he/she
is required to disclose or report the student's information pursuant to this administrative
regulation, and shall inform the student that honoring the student's request may limit the
district's ability to meet the student's needs related to his/her status as a transgender or
gender-nonconforming student. If the student permits the employee to notify the
compliance officer, the employee shall do so within three school days.

As appropriate given the student's need for support, the compliance officer may discuss
with the student any need to disclose the student's transgender or gender-nonconformity
status or gender identity or gender expression to his/her parents/guardians and/or others,
including other students, teacher(s), or other adults on campus. The district shall offer
support services, such as counseling, to students who wish to inform their
parents/guardians of their status and desire assistance in doing so.

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)
(cf. 3580 - District Records)

2,

Determining a Student's Gender Identity: The compliance officer shall accept the
student's assertion of his/her gender identity and begin to treat the student consistent with
his/her gender identity unless district personnel present a credible and supportable basis
for believing that the student's assertion is for an improper purpose.

Addressing a Student's Transition Needs: The compliance officer shall arrange a meeting
with the student and, if appropriate, his/her parents/guardians to identify and develop
strategies for ensuring that the student's access to education programs and activities is
maintained. The meeting shall discuss the transgender or gender-nonconforming student's
rights and how those rights may affect and be affected by the rights of other students and
shall address specific subjects related to the student's access to facilities and to academic
or educational support programs, services, or



AR 5145.3(h)

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT (continued)

activities, including, but not limited to, sports and other competitive endeavors. In
addition, the compliance officer shall identify specific school site employee(s) to whom
the student may report any problem related to his/her status as a transgender or gender-
nonconforming individual, so that prompt action can be taken to address it.
Alternatively, if appropriate and desired by the student, the school may form a support
team for the student that will meet periodically to assess whether the arrangements for the
student are meeting his/her educational needs and providing equal access to programs and
activities, educate appropriate staff about the student's transition, and serve as a resource
to the student to better protect the student from gender-based discrimination.

Accessibility to Sex-Segregated Facilities, Programs, and Activities: When the district
maintains sex-segregated facilities, such as restrooms and locker rooms, or offers sex-
segregated programs and activities, such as physical education classes, intermural sports,
and interscholastic athletic programs, students shall be permitted to access facilities and
participate in programs and activities consistent with their gender identity. To address
any student's privacy concerns in using sex-segregated facilities, the district shall offer
available options such as a gender-neutral or single-use restroom or changing area, a
bathroom stall with a door, an area in the locker room separated by a curtain or screen,
access to a staff member's office, or use of the locker room before or after the other
students. However, the district shall not require a student to utilize these options because
he/she is transgender or gender-nonconforming. In addition, a student shall be permitted
to participate in accordance with his/her gender identity in other circumstances where
students are separated by gender, such as for class discussions, yearbook pictures, and
field trips. A student's right to participate in a sex-segregated activity in accordance with
his/her gender identity shall not render invalid or inapplicable any other eligibility rule
established for participation in the activity.

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

(cf: 6153 - School-Sponsored Trips)

(cf: 7110 - Facilities Master Plan)

S.

Student Records: A student's legal name or gender as entered on the mandatory student
record required pursuant to 5 CCR 432 shall only be changed with proper documentation.
However, at the written request of a student or, if appropriate, his/her parents/guardians,
the district shall use the student's preferred name and pronouns consistent with his/her
gender identity on all other district-related documents. Such preferred name may be
added to the student's record and official documents as permitted by law.

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information)



AR 5145.3(i)

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT (continued)

6. Names and Pronouns: If a student so chooses, district personnel shall be required to
address the student by a name and the pronouns consistent with his/her gender identity,
without the necessity of a court order or a change to his/her official district record.
However, inadvertent slips or honest mistakes by district personnel in the use of the
student's name and/or consistent pronouns will, in general, not constitute a violation of
this administrative regulation or the accompanying district policy.

7. Uniforms/Dress Code: A student has the right to dress in a manner consistent with
his/her gender identity, subject to any dress code adopted on a school site.

(cf. 5132 - Dress Code)

Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
approved: May 2018



Students BP 5145.9(a)

HATE-MOTIVATED BEHAVIOR

The Governing Board is committed to providing a safe learning environment that protects
students from discrimination, harassment, intimidation, bullying, and other behavior
motivated by a person's hostility towards another person's real or perceived ethnicity,
national origin, immigrant status, sex, gender, sexual orientation, religious belief, age,
disability, or any other physical or cultural characteristic. The Superintendent or designee
shall design strategies to promote harmonious relationships among students, prevent
incidents of hate-motivated behavior to the extent possible, and address such incidents if they
occur.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)

(cf. 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or Damage)
(cf 5131- Conduct)

(cf 5131.2 - Bullying)

(cf 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti)

(cf- 5136 - Gangs)

(cf- 5137 - Positive School Climate)

(cf- 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention)

(cf- 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with regional programs and community
organizations to promote safe environments for youth. Such collaborative efforts shall focus
on ensuring an efficient use of district and community resources, developing effective
prevention strategies and response plans, providing assistance to students affected by hate-
motivated behavior, and/or educating students who have perpetrated hate-motivated acts.

(ef 1020 - Youth Services)

(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schoals)
(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools)

(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)

The district shall provide students with age-appropriate instruction that includes the
development of social-emotional learning, promotes their understanding of and respect for
human rights, diversity, and acceptance in a multicultural society, and provides strategies to
manage conflicts constructively.

(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)

(cf- 6142.3 - Civic Education)

(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes)
(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction)

As necessary, the district shall provide counseling, guidance, and support to students who are
victims of hate-motivated behavior and to students who exhibit such behavior.

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)



BP 5145.9(b)

HATE-MOTIVATED BEHAVIOR (continued)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the rules prohibiting hate-motivated
behavior and procedures for reporting a hate-motivated incident are provided to students and
parents/guardians.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide staff with training on recognizing and
preventing hate-motivated behavior and on effectively enforcing rules for appropriate student
conduct.

(cf- 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf: 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf- 4331 - Staff Development)

Complaint Process

A student or parent/guardian who believes the student is a victim of hate-motivated behavior
is strongly encouraged to report the incident to a teacher, the principal, or other staff member.

Any staff member who is notified that hate-motivated behavior has occurred, observes such
behavior, or otherwise becomes aware of an incident shall immediately contact the principal
or the compliance officer responsible for coordinating the district's response to complaints
and complying with state and federal civil rights laws. As appropriate, he/she shall also
contact law enforcement.

(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department)
(cf- 5145.11 - Questioning and Apprehension by Law Enforcement)

Any complaint of hate-motivated behavior shall be investigated and, if determined to be
discriminatory, shall be resolved in accordance with law and the district's uniform complaint
procedures specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. If, during the
investigation, it is determined that a complaint is about nondiscriminatory behavior, the
principal or designee shall inform the complainant and shall take all necessary actions to
resolve the complaint.

(cf 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

Legual Reference: (see next page)



BP 5145.9(c)

HATE-MOTIVATED BEHAVIOR (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination
32282 School safety plans
48900.3 Suspension for hate violence
48900.4 Suspension or expulsion for threats or harassment
PENAL CODE
422.55 Definition of hate crime
422.6 Crimes, harassment
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
4600-4670 Uniform eomplaint procedures
4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28
35.107 Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
100.3 Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin
104.7 Designation of responsible employee for Section 504
106.8 Designation of responsible employee for Title IX
110.25 Prohibition of discrimination based on age

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Bullying at School, 2003
CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS
Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All: Guidance and Model Policies to Assist
California K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018
US. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010
Dear Colleague Letter: Prohibited Disability Harassment, July 2000
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csha.org
California Association of Human Relations Organizations: hitp:/Avww.cahro.org
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov
California Office of the Attorney General: http://oag.ca.gov
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: hitp://www.ed. gov/about/offices/list/ocr
U.S. Department of Justice: https://www. justice.gov

Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
adopted: May 2018



